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Corporate Information and Key Dates

AFERKREERH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

28th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
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2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
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183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, Macau Branch

China Construction Bank Corporation

Hang Seng Bank Limited

KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement
Annual General Meeting
— Latest time to lodge transfers

28 September 2021
2 December 2021
26 November 2021
(before 4:30 p.m.)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form and on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (https://www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company. In order to protect the environment, the
Company highly recommends the shareholders to receive
electronic copy of this Annual Report. Shareholders may
have the right to change their choice of receipt of our future
Corporate Communications at any time by reasonable notice in
writing to the Company or the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, by post or by email at
is-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

T RER
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BREENRTEERME

BB BT

B JE 55 1828858
HEEBFHL
2818

TERODBEFERLRE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

EERONBFELTRE

EEZERAR AT
B

2/ RER1835%

& A N541E

FEXRIELT
XEBAIRGERATE BT
EBAT(EB) BB AT

B RITERA TR DT
FRERRTROERAT

BEERITHRAR

EEAH

FEEBRE 202149 H28H

BEBFRE 202112 A28

- ERBP X HRERE 2021411 A268
(N F4830% AT)

AR B

NGy (Fp 38 SCARAR) BT 4R A fA] AR 2 B AR BR LA D
RIRNSREBEREBEZSHFMBER AT (XA
2 #8 Uk (https://www.hkexnews.hk) & A& 2 7] 2
WUAER - RXFRR - ARFABNEES
BRREBEZUDMAFRZETFRA - RREB#
BERAER EZEEBN  AEEBTXEHR
(is-ecom@nhk tricorglobal.com) A AN A & 8% AN A
A EBERNBFPFEEIREIEEERERAR
nAEll BRFrEEARWERARBEMZ AR -

REXLEXEEARAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 %%




Results Summary

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor #£EX(LEXEEER AT (EARATANzES
Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) presents the audited B ((EBGIXEBNREARFARAWER
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries &l (%t &E )& £2021F6H30H IEFE
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 ([ AFEDNZKELZEAFE °

June 2021 (the “Year”).

Revenue 192,908 126,245 +52.8%

WA

Gross profit 111,172 75,903 +46.5%
EA

Loss for the year (228,078) (353,226) N/A
FEBE I3 A
Basic and diluted loss per share HK$(0.07) HK$(0.11) N/A
BREAREEEE BT & T T iE A

Emperor Cinemas — The LOHAS, Tseung Kwan O
HEB — KEBALER

Emperor Culture Group Limited REN{EEXEEHRAHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Emperor Cinemas — PAFC Mall, ShenZhen
HEFZHW — RIFL 2P L

RESULTS

With a gradual recovery in the film exhibition market due to
the gradual easing of social distancing measures and three
additional cinemas commenced operation during the Year, the
Group’s total revenue increased by 52.8% to HK$192.9 million
(2020: HK$126.2 million).

During the Year, the Group continued adopting various
measures to alleviate the adverse impacts due to the
pandemic, including negotiating with landlords for rental
reductions, implementing staff cost saving measures, improving
the customers’ experience, and launching various promotional
programs. With an increase in total revenue together with
effective cost saving measures, and no further impairment
of its cinema assets during the Year, the Group managed
to narrow down a net loss for the Year to HK$228.1 million
(2020: HK$353.2 million). Basic and diluted loss per share was
HK$0.07 (2020: HK$0.11).

Emperor Culture Group Limited

%II‘

MR RERHEEETHNE  EXRBTES
BLEE  URFIEIMBER N AT ERR S
B REE 2B A IN52.8%%192,900,000
7 7T (20204F : 126,200,0003% 7T) ©

RAFEE  REBEETHZIEEBEARE
BIEERZAFFE BIEEETETER
uliﬂiﬁfrﬁi KRB IRAHEER &
ERERUKEASEERE - ARBI
A RERORAHEERE  UARRAEE
RBEE—FZEMREERE  AEEREHEAR
FEHRE B U E 2 228,100,000 It (20204 :
353,200,000 L) - BRE AL B EEE R
0.077 7T (20204 : 0118 L) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

MARKET REVIEW

It was a challenging period during the Year, due to the
pandemic and various social distancing measures required by
the local authorities, which impacted the film exhibition market.

As pandemic containment had broadly stabilised in mainland
China before 2021, pent-up moviegoer demand was unleashed
and early recovery signs were noted. According to information
released by Maoyan Entertainment (3 BR 42 £4), China’s movie
box office revenue hit RMB27.5 billion during January to June
2021, representing growth of over 150.0% compared to July
to December 2020. Although adversely affected by the lack
of blockbusters and capacity limitations, the movie box office
revenue continued to grow in the region. Supported by the
recovery of consumption and entertainment market sentiments,
more people were eager to return to cinemas to watch movies
on screen.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally engages in entertainment, media and
cultural development businesses, which include (i) cinema
operation; and (ii) investments in films and a variety of cultural
events.

Film Exhibition

Revenue from the film exhibition segment increased by 52.8%
to HK$192.9 million (2020: HK$126.2 million), which included
the revenue of box office takings amounted to HK$164.1 million
(2020: HK$100.9 million). In terms of revenue by geographical
segment, revenue from mainland China and Hong Kong was
HK$133.2 million (2020: HK$65.9 million) and HK$59.5 million
(2020: HK$56.4 million) respectively, accounting for 69.0% (2020:
52.2%) and 30.8% (2020: 44.6%) of the film exhibition revenue.

Emperor Cinemas — iSQUARE, Tsim Sha Tsui
2 2Bt — 2 IHISQUARE

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had 14 (2020: 11) cinemas 20214 6°30H @ AEBHKH14(20204F : 11)
in mainland China, Hong Kong and Malaysia under Emperor F’EEJJ%W?L CBRERPERNM  REEHE - BB
Cinemas, offering a total of 116 (2020: 95) houses with 2 &2 &N FR T 2 Emperor Cinemas
approximately 15,300 (2020: 12,400) seats, all of which are .:l,\im{ 116 (20204F : 95) E MM Fr - #715,300
situated in strategic locations providing premium entertainment  (20204F : 12,400) f& 4 /& + 2 2P A B SR BE 1
services. The details of the film exhibition network as at 30 R B IR E T IR LRI - BB ALK

June 2021 are as follows: 202166 A30B Z & 1EM T :

No. of houses No. of seats

B S E LEYE

Mainland China TERMZEXEEZH
1. Shin Kong Place, Chongging 1. EEFHKM 18 2,298
2. MixC, Hefei 2. AEELRHW 13 1,980
3. Wenjiang Shin Kong Place, Chengdu 3. FENRIII KR 10 1,836
4. Shanshan Outlet Plaza, Ganzhou 4. BNEELRBRNES 9 1,500
5. Emperor Group Centre, Beijing 5. IREEEEFL 10 1,154
6. PAFC Mall, Shenzhen* 6. FIFLZEEAL* 7 984
7. Shengjing Long City, Shenyang* 7. BHGERRER 8 966
8. East Pacific Shopping Mall, Shenzhen 8. RIIRBBEHKRH 9 449
Hong Kong BB ERLE
9. iSQUARE, Tsim Sha Tsui 9. A IHISQUARE 5 979
10. The LOHAS, Tseung Kwan O* 10. HERB R 6 885
11.  Citywalk, Tsuen Wan 1. BEEEHXHM 5 687
12. MOSTown, Ma On Shan 12. BEBILFHBRPL 4 435
13. New Town Commercial Arcade, Tuen Mun 13. i 951 &0 &35 4 363
Malaysia Bk FGE 2 Emperor Cinemas
14. R&F Mall Johor Bahru 14. FUENES 8 743
Total Mt 116 15,259

* Newly opened during the Year R 784 /€ 77 %

Emperor Cinemas — MOSTown, Ma On Shan
2R — 58 BT E A

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{CEXEEBERAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 5}




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Located in either large-scale commercial and entertainment
complex or upscale residential areas, the cinemas of the
Group are positioned as high-end premium cinemas equipped
with advanced technologies including IMAX® theatre system,
ScreenX, 4DX or MX4D motion systems, D-Box seats and
Dolby Atmos audio system. They also feature VIP houses and
VIP lounges, where the audiences can enjoy premium and
exclusive entertainment services.

During the Year, 2 new cinemas were opened in mainland
China, and another in Hong Kong. Emperor Cinemas in The
LOHAS, Tseung Kwan O, Hong Kong, commenced operation
in November 2020. This is the biggest cinema complex in the
district, with 6 houses and offering a total of 885 seats. Its
design concept is based on the theme of urban nourishment,
in order to align with the shopping mall’'s theme of Lifestyles
of Health and Sustainability. Also, the exceptional design of
the herringbone roof, which is made of wood and resembles
a farmhouse, creates an amiable feeling for the patrons of
Emperor Cinemas.

Investments in Films and Cultural Events

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had investments in certain
film productions at fair value of HK$5.5 million (2020: HK$6.2
million).

Emperor Cinemas — The LOHAS, Tseung Kwan O
HE2E T — HERALE

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 £ #f
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

PROSPECTS

Though there are still a few sporadic outbreaks and imported
cases in mainland China and Hong Kong, good progress
on vaccination and effective pre-cautionary measures were
seen in both markets. Major studios have begun releasing
blockbusters. In tandem with the expansion of the middle-
income group and the release of strong pent-up entertainment
demand, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the
film exhibition market outlook in the long term. Meanwhile,
the Group will adhere to its prudent approach and continue
improving its cost structures, to strengthen the core
competency and enhance its overall operating efficiency. The
Group will also utilise social media to promote its brand image
and drive ticket sales and visitations, as well as enhance
customer loyalty.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue exploring opportunities
to further expand the cinema network, especially within the
Greater China region. Subsequent to the Year, the Group has
successfully secured a cinema site at Times Square, Causeway
Bay (“Times Square Cinema”), which is one of the large
shopping malls in a prime area of Hong Kong. When this
commences operation, which is scheduled for late 2021, the
Group will bring the best cinematic experience to patrons.
Leveraging its long established Emperor brand label as well
as synergy with Emperor Entertainment Group and Emperor
Motion Pictures, plus the positive long-term outlook for China’s
movie industry, the Group will endeavour to strengthen its
position in the industry and maintain stable business growth.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$56.9 million (2020: HK$40.6 million), which
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

To finance its operations and capital expenditure, the Group
utilises cash flows generated from operations and from loan
facilities granted by a related party and a bank. As at 30 June
2021, the Group had total borrowings of HK$333.0 million
(2020: HK$191.9 million), which comprise a loan from a related
party of HK$282.4 million (2020: HK$146.3 million), bank loan
of HK$7.0 million (2020: HK$2.0 million) and amount due to
non-controlling interests of HK$43.6 million (2020: HK$43.6
million), respectively. Except for the amount due to non-
controlling interests, which is unsecured, interest-free and was
provided with an agreement not to demand repayment within
12 months from the date of the end of the Year, all these
borrowings are unsecured, interest-bearing and have fixed
repayment terms. The gearing ratio of the Group (expressed
as a percentage of total borrowings over total asset value) was
19.3% (2020: 11.2%) as at 30 June 2021.

Management has closely monitored the development of the
pandemic and its impact on the current and anticipated liquidity
of the Group in the future. Having considered the existing
improvement measures implemented by the Group and the
available loan facilities granted by the related party and the
bank, the Directors believed that the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to satisfy its future working capital and other
financing requirements for the foreseeable future.

Emperor Cinemas — Citywalk, Tsuen Wan
2 2R — ZEEF M
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s cash and bank balances, income and expenditure
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
Malaysian Ringgit. As most of the Group’s assets, liabilities
and transactions were transacted at and denominated in the
functional currency of its foreign operations, the Group was
not exposed to significant fluctuation in foreign exchange rates
during the Year.

Termination of the Possible Acquisition of SMI
Culture & Travel Group Holdings Limited (“SMI
Culture” or the “Target Company”)

On 24 February 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Potential Purchaser”) issued a letter of intent
to the receivers of SMI Culture (the “Receivers”) for the
potential acquisition of all or certain of 829,185,517 shares
(the “Received Shares”) of the Target Company (“Possible
Acquisition”), representing approximately 52.51% of its issued
share capital. This letter of intent was non-legally binding in
nature and the Possible Acquisition had been terminated.

Emperor Cinemas — Shengjing Long City, Shenyang
HETEZW — EEEREMR

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

On 30 December 2020, the discussions regarding the Possible
Acquisition were terminated by the Group due to the difficulty
in assessing the value of issued shares of the Target Company,
including the Received Shares in respect of the Possible
Acquisition. No formal or legally binding agreement had been
entered into in respect of the Possible Acquisition between the
Receivers and the Potential Purchaser. The offer period ended
on 30 December 2020.

Details in relation to the Possible Acquisition and its termination
were set out in the joint announcements of the Company and
the Potential Purchaser dated 26 February 2020, 25 March
2020, 24 April 2020, 25 May 2020, 26 June 2020, 24 July
2020, 25 August 2020, 25 September 2020, 27 October
2020, 30 November 2020 and 30 December 2020.

Major Transaction in relation to the Letter of
Offer

On 27 May 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as tenant received a letter of offer (the “Letter of Offer”) as
accepted by a leasing agent on behalf of the landlord in relation
to the lease transaction for the Times Square Cinema. Pursuant
to the Letter of Offer, the value (unaudited) of the right-of-use
asset to be recognised by the Group is approximately HK$92.5
million. In July 2021, the Group has successfully taken over
the site and planned ahead the renovation work. The Group
targets to commence business in late 2021.

Details in relation to this major transaction were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 May 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 18 June 2021.

Emperor C/'nemas — Shanshan Outlet Plaza, Ganzhou
HEEHH — FNEERBRTES

B R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Emperor Cinemas — Wenjiang Shin Kong Place, Chengdu
HEFFI — KR IT B M

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s number of employees was
436 (2020: 502). Total staff costs including the Directors’
remuneration and other staff costs for the Year were HK$58.9
million (2020: HK$64.8 million). Each employees’ remuneration
was determined in accordance with individual's responsibilities,
competence and skills, experience and performance, as
well as market pay levels. Staff benefits include medical and
life insurance, provident funds and other competitive fringe
benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which will be set
out in the section headed “Share Options Scheme” on pages
143 and 144 of this annual report.

BE R FHMEBEK

202165308 * A& E £ B (& §436 (2020
F:502)Z - AFEEIXRALHEBIEES
Ok E A48 T A A) A58,900,0005% 7T (2020
F 1 64,800,000/ 7T) ° BIEEFH MR IEE A
B E - s R - 8% &R A K5 H
KEET BEIRMNBREREERASRR A
BeREMARFHIOENETE -

REBIRFEL ARRERM—IABERE
A8 BEFBBEIRAF HRFE143%1445
ZIBERHEE | —fR -
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREBAEZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (CHAIRPERSON)

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man
Seung), aged 58, an Executive Director of the Company
and Chairperson of the Board. Ms. Fan joined the Company
in March 2017 and has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as well
as overseeing different functions within the Group. She is
also the Chairperson of the Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee as well as
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Currently,
Ms. Fan is also a director of Emperor International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor International”), Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor
E Hotel”), Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code:
887) (“Emperor W&J”) and Ulferts International Limited
(Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”), all being listed members
under Emperor Group. Having over 32 years of corporate
management experience, Ms. Fan possesses diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from cinema
development and operation to entertainment production and
investment, property investment and development, hotel and
hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer
by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WONG CHI FAIl, aged 65, joined the Company in March
2017 as an Executive Director of the Company and has
been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing the financial
management of the Group. He is a member of the Executive
Committee and Remuneration Committee as well as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Currently, Mr. Wong
is also a director of Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel,
Emperor W&J and Ulferts. Having over 30 years of finance and
management experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experiences
in different businesses ranging from cinema development
and operation to entertainment production and investment,
manufacturing, property investment and development, hotel
and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, wholesaling
and retailing of furniture, financial and securities services,
artiste management as well as media and publication. He is
a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESENEREBAEBZEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

YEUNG CHING LOONG, ALEXANDER, aged 35, an
Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yeung joined the Company in March
2017, and has been actively formulating the Group’s innovative
strategies by integrating digital technologies with premium
services to position high-end markets for the Group’s cultural
industry business in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
He is also the vice chairman of Emperor Entertainment Group
and Emperor Motion Pictures, assisting in leading entertainment
production and investment, artiste management, film investment
and distribution, and cinema development and operations.
Besides, Mr. Yeung has a wide range of experience in financial
and securities services, property investment and development,
hotel operations, retailing of watch & jewellery, media and
publication, furniture and furnishing, etc. Mr. Yeung is also an
executive director of Emperor International, which is a listed
member under Emperor Group.

SHIRLEY PERCY HUGHES, aged 58, joined the Company in
March 2017 as an Executive Director of the Company. She is
also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company.
Ms. Hughes is currently engaged in the management of
entertainment businesses involving production and distribution
of music, TV programmes and motion pictures as well as event
performance and artiste management. She was previously the
Chief Executive Officer of New Media Group and has over 30
years’ of experience in media and publishing business. Prior
to that, she worked for Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting
Company Limited as Program Presenter and Producer as
well as for Hong Kong Cable Television Limited as Channel
Manager of Entertainment Channel and Controller for Program
Development and Production for more than 10 years.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREBAEZEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 58, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2014. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. She is a retired
solicitor and with over 20 years of experience as independent
non-executive director of various listed companies. Currently,
she is also an independent non-executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 997) and Emperor
W&J. Ms. Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with Bachelor’'s Degree in Laws.

HO TAT KUEN, aged 47, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2016.
Mr. Ho is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He has been practising as a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since 2009. He has
over 23 years of experience in accounting profession. Mr. Ho
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and is
a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong.

TAM SAU YING, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2018.
She is also the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Tam is a co-founder and
partner of Messrs. Leung, Tam & Wong, Solicitors. She has
over 20 years of experience in the legal profession and is
also an accredited mediator and a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer. She graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree and gained
her Master of Arts Degree from University of Essex, England.
Ms. Tam later studied law in The University of Hong Kong and
was admitted as a solicitor in 2001,

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 £ #f

BIUFHITES

PRIEZS - INF585% © BH2014F7TAREARR
VIEHTEE - R+ AAA 725*??\5
ﬁ%a/mé EJZ%E"?BU%?EW&EW HEE

@@7((&@?%ﬂ&§EE£$EZﬁ
VIRITEE BLTR2ERNEFTBEAE B
BEREELEN -

fIERE > BFEATE > B2016F 11 ALEARRF]
BUFPTEF - ALERAAFREKEZE
CIFERTNEESRIEREZEERE - BB
2009F B AT BN ESTA - A B B23F
\Eﬁéigﬁ MEEBEEGHMAE
MEBHREE2eeE WA ZEBHRER
%Egﬁrﬁ °

BB - IFL35 52018$11H HEARR A

BYUFNTES - BENAARAFHEESE
f‘&%’f?i“‘\%ﬂh%i,\sﬁﬁiﬁ c BRIH
BREERMEBAB S LAREEBA &
BHBE0FMERZELS  WARTARS

KABEZFTLAIA ° ?&’%%BCE/%EPXKE ’
EdehklE2eat a5 R % B University of
Essex MG N BB T84 - BEXTHREETARB
KEEFE LR W HR2001FBRBEMER -

REV(LEXEBERDE



Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engages in entertainment, media and cultural
development businesses which include (i) cinema operation;
and (ii) investment in films and a variety of cultural events.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 67 and 68
respectively of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages
5 to 13 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 32 to 58 of this annual
report and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2020/2021 of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 164 of this
annual report.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$78,958,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 71 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2021, the Company has no reserve available
for distribution to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) (2020: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 8 November 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company
(“Shares”) on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

18 Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers represented less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented 68% of the Group’s total purchases and
services received. The largest supplier accounted for 57% of
the Group’s total purchases and services received during the
Year.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had beneficial interests
in the share capital of any of the above major customers or
suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen

Ms. Tam Sau Ying

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 14 to 16
of this annual report. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(2) and 87(3) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Ho Tat Kuen and Ms. Tam Sau
Ying shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (2021 AGM”) and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2021 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which
are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests
Ex=ps B REEEE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong,  Eligible beneficiary of a private
Alexander discretionary trust
(“Mr. Alex Yeung”) FAAGBREZEERIHEA
BHRELE(BEE]

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Culture Group
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert
Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited (“AY Entertainment
Holdings”). AY Entertainment Holdings is held by Alto Trust
Limited in trust for a private discretionary trust of which Mr.
Alex Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(B) Long position interests in associated
corporation

Ordinary shares

(i)

%%&i%ﬁﬁkéZ%%%é
B) RIGHLE > A BE

(i) EER

Number % of issued
Name of of shares voting shares
Name of associated interested HERT
Director corporation Capacity/Nature of interests FEES BRERE
Exns LB £ 8 28 $:1:3-1 ZRGEE ROBDH
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Emperor International  Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29%
Vanessa REERE ERBEBA
(‘Ms. Vanessa Fan")
BHEzL(BL))
Mr. Alex Yeung Emperor International  Eligible beneficiary of a private  2,747,610,489 74.71%
BRaE HERR discretionary trust (Note)
MARBEIZEEREHA (Ht7t)
Emperor E Hotel -Ditto- 851,352,845 71.11%
REIRERE - E- (Note)
(Ht7t)
Emperor W&J -Ditto- 4,298,610,000 63.41%
REERHKE - E- (Note)
(Ht7t)
Ulferts -Ditto- 600,000,000 75.00%
Bt - E- (Note)
(Ht7t)
Note: Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J Mat: =REEE RERE[E X2

and Ulferts are companies with their shares listed on
the Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately
owned by respective private discretionary trusts. Mr.
Alex Yeung had deemed interests in the same shares
by being one of the eligible beneficiaries of such
private discretionary trusts.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
(B) Long position interests in associated
corporation (continued)
(ii) Debentures

Name of
Name of Director associated corporation
EEpE HELEER

Mr. Wong Chi Fai
(“Mr. Bryan Wong")
BEEELE(ELE)

Emperor International
%2 E R

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
November 2011, which has a term of 10 years and will be
expiring on 7 November 2021. Particulars of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. A resolution will be submitted to the 2021 AGM to
adopt a new share option in view of the lapse of the Scheme
in November 2021.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Options Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was
the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 June 2021, the interests of the Directors or their
respective associates in the business which are considered to
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group (“Competing Business”) as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Nature of Competing Business:
(1)  Cinema operation

(2) Investment in films and cultural events

EERBFRB2ES

BiE EmRA - RN2021F6H308 - EEFHE
EXAZHBBAREE AEASEEEEKHE
BREFHAIEBRBREFCEE(RRER]
FHEETHEBEZEDIOT

MEEKIME:
(1) B iE
(2 BEELEEBERE

Interests in Competing Business: BMERB T
Nature of
Name of Competing
Name of Director competing company Nature of interests Business
BEEnR BEATER EaME BEXEBHE
Mr. Alex Yeung Certain companies controlled/  Eligible beneficiary of the private 1) & (2)
155k A& owned by a private discretionary trust
discretionary trust of which Dr. FLABIBETLZ2EER T & A
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”) is the
founder and settlor
H—IELARNBERIGXKE
T(HBBE) RZEFR AL
ARMERTA)ESHHE
ZHTAA
Ms. Vanessa Fan -Ditto- Director 1) & (2)
Bt -[A k- =
Mr. Bryan Wong -Ditto- Director 1 & (2)
mhAE -[A k- =
Ms. Shirley Percy -Ditto- Director (2)
Hughes -[A k- 55
ML HT 22 £
[ ] Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBEERL T 23
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 30 June 2021, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

Name

£ MR

Capacity/Nature of interests

56 #EME

AY Entertainment Holdings
15X IR 21 IR AR PEGDERE 2w
Alto Trust Limited

IARBEFRZXFTEA

Dr. Albert Yeung
HEL IARBEFEZEIZA

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse

(“Ms. Semon Luk”) B 18 4 &=
Ehert((BEzt))
Note: These Shares were the same shares of which Mr. Alex Yeung had

deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above. Ms. Semon Luk is
the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in DI Register.
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Interest in a controlled corporation

Trustee of a private discretionary trust

Founder of a private discretionary trust
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly
or indirectly, in such transactions:

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

24 May 2018
(1)  The Company; and
(2) Emperor International

MLA sets out the framework of the
terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)’) regarding
leasing of certain office properties
or other properties (including cinema
and advertising space) from Emperor
International and its subsidiaries for the
period from 24 May 2018 to 31 March
2021 with aggregate tenancy annual
caps being set for each of the financial
years ended 30 June 2019, 2020 and
for the 9 months ending 31 March 2021
(“Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members
of the Group and the relevant members
of Emperor International may from time
to time enter into any definitive leasing
agreements in relation to any Tenancy
Transactions (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)”). The terms of each
Definitive Leasing Agreement shall be
on normal commercial terms or on terms
which are no less favorable to the Group
than terms offered by independent third
parties. The terms and rental shall be
subject to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition of the
properties and with reference to the then
prevailing market rents on property(ies)
comparable in location, area and
permitted use.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

26

(continued)

Connected
Relationship
and
Directors’
Interest:

Announcement:

Independent
Shareholders’
approval:

Effective
Date:

Aggregate
Amount:

Emperor Culture Group Limited

As both the Company and Emperor
International were indirectly controlled
by the relevant discretionary trusts set
up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is deemed
substantial shareholder of the Company,
Emperor International was a connected
person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Mr. Alex Yeung,
a Director, has deemed interest in the
transactions by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
discretionary trusts.

24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

9 August 2018

9 August 2018, whereupon the Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps had replaced
all the then annual caps previously
obtained by the Company for the Tenancy
Transactions.

The aggregate amounts of the Tenancy
Transactions with Emperor International
or its relevant members for the 9
months ended 31 March 2021 was
HK$7,155,000.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

(continued)

2020 MLA:

With the expiration of the MLA, the
Company entered into new master leasing
agreement with Emperor International
(2020 MLA") on 3 December 2020 to
regulate arrangements for the Tenancy
Transactions between the parties for a
successive term of 3 years from 1 April
2021. The new aggregate tenancy annual
caps for each of the 3 months ended
30 June 2021, the financial year ending
30 June 2022 and 2023; and 9 months
ending 31 March 2024 were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 3
December 2020.

The aggregate right-of-use amount and
rental expense amount of the Tenancy
Transactions with Emperor International
or its relevant members for the period
from 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021
were HK$3,752,000 and HK$405,000,
respectively.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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EEERE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions —
Master Agreement on purchasing furniture
products and coupons and obtaining
furniture procurement consultancy
services (“Master Furniture Agreement”)

28

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

Connected
Relationship
and
Directors’
Interest:

Announcement:

Aggregate
Amounts:

Emperor Culture Group Limited

29 June 2020
(1)
(@)

The Company; and
Ulferts

Pursuant to the Master Furniture
Agreement, Ulferts and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Ulferts
Group”) shall (i) sell furniture products
and coupons and provide furniture
procurement related consultancy
services to members of the Group in
relation to the projects and investments,
or for own consumption by the Group
and (i) provide such other types of
ancillary services in the ordinary course
of business of the Group, commencing
from 1 July 2020 and up to 30 June
2023.

As both the Company and Ulferts were
indirectly controlled by the relevant
private discretionary trusts set up by Dr.
Albert Yeung who is deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company, Ulferts was
a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Mr. Alex Yeung, a Director, has deemed
interest in the transactions by virtue of
being one of the eligible beneficiaries of
the relevant private discretionary trusts.

29 June 2020

During the Year, the amounts of
HK$666,000 and HK$8,000 were paid
to Ulferts Group for the purchase of
furniture products and coupons and
the obtaining of furniture procurement
consultancy services respectively.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements
Save as the “Interest expense on lease liabilities”, the “Lease
payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities”,
the “Purchases of furniture” and the “Consultancy fee” for
the Year as shown in note 31 — “Transactions with Related
Parties and Other Members of the Emperor Group” to the
consolidated financial statements which constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, all other transactions as shown in the
note thereon are connected transactions exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the relevant requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the above continuing connected transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Group’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”)
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s
Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

[ Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed the CCTs and
the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed that these transactions
have been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(3) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at any time during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard to a
written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to business
strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’ interest
and current market best practice). Remuneration should be paid
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group and
applicability of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’
fees are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

30 Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’'s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay levels. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries,
Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to the financial performance of the Group and
individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and
other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 32 to 58 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 256% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the 2021 AGM. A resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERERE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
‘Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. During
the Year, the Company has fully complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance of
the Group.

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2021, the Board comprised seven Directors, four
of which are Executive Directors (including the Chairperson)
whilst three are INEDs. The Board considers that this
composition ensures a strong independent element with a
balance of power and influence between individual in the
Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out from pages
14 to 16 of this annual report under the “Biographies of the
Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Vanessa Fan has been appointed as the Chairperson of
the Board who provides leadership for the Board. With the
support of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”), she ensures that all Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information and are properly briefed on
issues arising at the board meetings. She is responsible for
ensuring that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities. The Executive Directors are responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses. The
Board considers that current segregation of duties can ensure
a balance of power and authority and make the Board and the
operation of the Group function effectively.

The Chairperson holds meeting without the presence of
Executive Directors with INEDs at least once a year.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 £ #f

EFSBN/ARRMBTRKFZERER -
ARERBIRER - ARRF0nE  KEENUKRE
BRRMIAE AENMABHEIZHE -

EESCHRMZARE  UEFRETLEHARL
ffex Mz e aTA(REERTAZ
SRMEX - RAFE  ARRIEE2EETLE™T
BMAIM S+ M8 2 D REBTRZAAEST
AR

Exg

EEECABRER
ARRINEZERE EXCRERENER
ALEE TEBEEREEESHEFER
BEARkERASEZHTBHREERR B
REAKEZKRNEFTEBRR 2 -

EEGHR

MR2021F6A30R  EEEHLtRES (UEH
TEEBREIR)R=-ZZBIFNTESR)A
K- EBEEeRAEZEKBEREEAEREND
VLE - KEZHEMENRFESUEE - &
BEEVERHNAFTRFB4Z16EEER D
REBANEZRBFE] & -

EFRERITHAR
BEXTEZEREFTEIR AAEFAEESE
g BEARAATME ([RARED) BT
ERTEEREBESTAMKEIRENER - &
REZEER LR BEENTENNER -
FEERFREZTSAIMEELREITARSE -
HTEFRBEAKEXRB AREE - EFE
RRREGBAE DA &) EREFASE
WEEFEGRAKE B LA B EE

TEEBYFNTESEFRD BT KRR
BWTESELRENEH -

REVLEXEBERDE ®



Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

All INEDs are professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing in business areas
who contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them
has been appointed for an initial term of three years which is
renewed automatically for successive terms of one year subject
to early termination with notice being served by either party. The
terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election provisions under the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of
them to be independent by reference to the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been
expressly identified as such in all corporate communication of
the Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of
the Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the
Board) who has been delegated to carry out the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group, formulate business
policies and make decision on key business issues. The
Executive Committee shall have all power and authorities of
the Board except but not limited to the following key matters:

° determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;
° approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

° declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

° approving major changes that require disclosure under
the Listing Rules;

° approving substantial acquisition or disposal;
° approving non-exempt connected transactions; and

° approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Support and Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest in the
Group and such induction materials will also be provided
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is
a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in
order to assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company.
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Topics on training covered

Name of Directors EEHA FrREZEINEE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa B (1) Corporate Governance
TEER

Mr. Wong Chi Fai =LEEA (2) Regulatory
EE

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander BN BE & (3) Finance
Br 7%

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes 5l Hr 22 + (4) Industry-specific
TEMEA

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PR fBIe L+

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen MEREEE

Ms. Tam Sau Ying A S am
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EEg(#F
EEERERZEE

EFERECABMEBTANBER(ERYE %X
% REBIHMEKR HBEBR) -

THE BOARD (continued)

Relationship between the Board members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

BEEZzRE
ARFEHEE AL GE Y 2 AERFRIE
MBS 2 BARR -

EEZHEBRAREEARA
RAFEEFLERRBRAOT:

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the
Year is set out below:

No. of meetings attended/held
HESS ST88AY

Corporate
Governance
Audit Remuneration Nomination = Committee Executive General

Name of Directors Board Committee  Committee  Committee =~ £ ¥%EJA  Committee Meeting
EEps Exg ENEEE FHEEE REZEE ZE8 HTZEE RRA®
Executive Directors
BTES
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 1) 77 11 11 12/12 11
BEER L (M)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 717 1/1 1212 11
BELELE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander 717 12/12 11
BHELE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes 6/7 12/12 11
F &t
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIYFHTES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 717 3/3 11 11
BRig¥R 2+
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen (Note 2) 717 3/3 1/1 11 11
R EN 22)
Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Note 3) 717 3/3 il 11 11
BEE L+ (M73)
Total number of meetings held: 7 3 1 1 1 12 1
2T zAY:

Notes: M &t -

1. Chairperson of the Board, Executive Committee, Nomination 1. E5g HPITEES REZEGROLET

Committee and Corporate Governance Committee EgXF

2. Chairman of the Audit Committee 2. EREZEGEF

3. Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee 3. #HHzZESXRE
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TEERERE

THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment
(continued)
During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs

without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and
is satisfied that each Director has been spending sufficient time
in performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice
was given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting (on other agreed period) to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time with reasonable notice by
any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs,
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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TEERRSE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees as at 30 June
2021 are set out below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 28 January 2015)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), Mr. Bryan Wong, Mr. Alex Yeung and Ms.
Shirley Percy Hughes. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and
making decision (including entering into transactions)
on matters relating to the management and day-to-
day operations of the Group; (b) making and reviewing
corporate/financial/treasury planning, investment and
operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing and
approving any financial, borrowing, charging and
guarantee commitment to be made or on behalf of the
Group; (d) approving transactions, including discloseable
transactions, exempted connected transactions and
non-exempted continuing connected transactions took
place from time to time under the master agreement(s)
previously approved by the Board/Shareholders (as the
case may be) under the Listing Rules; (e) approving any
publication of the relevant announcement for discloseable
transaction in relation to lease transaction recognising the
right-of-use assets by the Company as a lessee according
to HKFRS 16 Leases; and (f) having all power and
authorities of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal
Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by the
Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.
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TEERRE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

2.

38

Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Ho Tat Kuen (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Chan Sim
Ling, Irene and Ms. Tam Sau Ying.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of
audit process and the accounting policies and
principles adopted by the Group, and the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 30 June
2020 (“Previous Year”) and the interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 31
December 2020;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group
during the Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment
of external auditor at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 3 December 2020 (“2020
AGM”); and

V. approved the audit plan for the Previous Year,
reviewed the independence of external auditor and
approved its engagement.
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TEERBRE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

3.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 26 October 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs, and Mr. Bryan
Wong, being the Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on (a) the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management; (b) the remuneration of INEDs;
and (c) the specific remuneration packages for individual
Executive Directors and senior management. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation
to the Board for approval; and

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their
specific packages.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 F 3R

Exg(E
EEZEg(F

3.

FMEEE (R2005F 10526 17)
YMEEemH="2KELAK HHRA
BYERTEEBERLL(ZEEETF)
REREE  URBITEEELE o

FEZEec AREMBEEENNE
RRARRMFUEEHN FWHEZEEL
TERERN@QEZTRARASAE R
B2HMEBERERE: (O)BUFATE
EZ2HM: ROQENRTEERSMRE
BEZEEFMEBRESSRHEHERS
BER - AFEEREZZHFMFBENE
EMBWERMT - FHEESERAEE

NBTT—REH -

FHZEeRNAFERTZIEREH
ZIanR

. BREEEFEL IRNEFSRHAHE
BREBEARIAE &

i. WEBETHATESELSRAEEEZ
FHRE e TREEFSH
ERFEZRHEFB -

REN(LEXEBERQF 39



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)
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EEZEg(F

4. Nomination Committee (set up on 23 March 2012) 4. RBZBEG(R2012F3H23H8K )
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, RELZEEGHR=-BKEENX  EDRIRE
namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the Committee), EEXIFDBRE(ZEGERE) UREY
being the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. Ho Tat Kuen and FERITESMERLEREBEBRALL -
Ms. Tam Sau Ying, both being INEDs.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination ?m% Z8g Z L 8% 25 T B A 0 B m] 0
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock REFIRARFIBUER - RBREE mZ
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the I%‘éﬂ%%\@% QBRFTESTHEE -
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, AE - HAEKEZTH: OD)RFTES
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing LB E: (C )#E%%T&%Zﬁ &
the Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy (fh%ﬁ&%ﬁj)&%é BEESFEREAN: ()
for the nomination of Directors (‘Nomination Policy”) TR IERITESNE LML (e ) |
and identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d) BEERTHEEBREMEANRR &)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the MESZME EHEZME BEXHATN
time commitment of each Director in performing his/her REZEAFENESSREERZ - 12
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the HEEBERNAFERITT—REHE -
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or
re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.
A summary of the work performed by the Nomination REZEENAFERTZIERESH
Committee during the Year is set out as follows: Fan R
i.  reviewed the structure, size, composition and i M SNEESMES AS-HEAKK
diversity of the Board; % At
ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs; i WABEYERITEEFZBE
ii. reviewed the confirmation from Directors on time i. MNESHRBTECESBRAEMKR
committed in performing their duties as Directors; AZKHEZERE R
and
iv. made recommendation to the Board on the re- iv. BLR2020fxRBEFRE LEREEF
election of Directors at the 2020 AGM. CEERNESSRHEHEBER -
40 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX(CEXEEERAT .
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (sef up on 23 March 2012)
(continued)

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will also assess the
merits and contribution of any Director proposed for re-
election or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
Director that will bring to the Board against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted the Nomination Policy of the
Group which aims at assisting the Nomination Committee
in identifying and nominating suitable candidates for
directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets
out the nomination criteria and the nomination procedures
for (i) nominating new Director to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board; (ii) making recommendation to Shareholders
regarding any Director for election or re-election at
general meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on
election of new Director.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

5.

42

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 14 August
2015)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists
of four members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson
of the Committee), being the Chairperson of the
Board, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, being an INED, a
representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC
is available on the Company’s website. The primary
duties of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company (“CG
Policy”) and making recommendations to the Board; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of
the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The CGC held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during
the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and

V. reviewed on Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and ensuring
that the Board policy and procedures are followed. She is
responsible for advising the Board on general duties and
obligations of Directors and good corporate governance issues,
and has facilitated induction and professional development of
the Directors. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly
complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal financial statements which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and made judgment and estimates that
were prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements were prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before it for approval.
The auditor of the Company had made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor's Report.
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TEERERE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company
in achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies
and procedures within the Group are updated regularly with
the primary objective of providing general guidance and

recommendations on a basic framework of risk management
and internal control systems (“Control Systems”).

A.

44

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Control Systems. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
losses.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
- safeguarding assets;

- ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

- promoting adherence to policies,
regulations and laws; and

procedures,

- promoting effectiveness and efficiency of
operations.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls; and (i) risk management functions in its principal
subsidiaries of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control
Governance Control

The control structure of the Control Systems is set
out as follows:

M

The Board

responsible for the overall Control Systems and
reviewing their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing
basis with the assistance of Audit Committee;

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Control Systems;

define management structure with clear lines
of responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant
risk that the Group is willing to take in

achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Control Systems. This discussion
includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualification and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

review the nature and extent of risks, and the
Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment;

review and discuss annually with any
significant control failings or weaknesses that
are identified by the auditor; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditor
and Internal Audit Department and make
recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
(1) Governance Control (continued)

The management (including heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design, implement and maintain the Control
Systems properly and ensure the Control
Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate
risks in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt response to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal and external auditors;

prepare organisation charts to show the
reporting relationships within the operation
and management to establish lines of
responsibilities; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.

Internal Audit Department

46

carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of adequacy and effectiveness of
the Control Systems in respect of all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance aspects;

alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities and advise them on
the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the
Group; and

report results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee
and the Board on regular basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place
to safeguard the compliance control:

@

(i)

(i)

(il

(iv)

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of internal work team (if required),
that any material information which comes to
the knowledge of any one or more officers
should be promptly identified, assessed
and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make
timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary,
and take appropriate measures to preserve
confidentiality of inside information until proper
dissemination of the inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which
shall be reviewed and monitored regularly
by the Corporate Governance Committee as
delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations and the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by
the Audit Committee which ensures that
proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters; and
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERERE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)

48

@

©)

Compliance Control (continued)

v)

Anti-money Laundering and Counter-terrorist
Financing Policy and Procedures is
established to set out the general framework
for combating against money laundering and
financing of terrorism. It provides guideline to
prevent the Group’'s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors from
misused for money laundering, terrorist financing
or other financial crime and has set out some
indications of potentially suspicious transactions/
activities for employees’ reference.

Operational Control
The management is responsible for analysing the

control

environment, identifying risks pertaining

thereto, and implementing various controls therein
as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Approach taken: The management conducts
interview with relevant staff members, reviews
relevant documentation of the Control Systems
and evaluates findings of any deficiencies
in the design of the Group’s internal control
system, then provides recommendations for
improvement and assesses the effectiveness
of implementation of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings
of the review on the Control Systems will
be reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually;

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition
and ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records that are in compliance with
the applicable laws, rules and regulations for
the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use and/or external publication;
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
Operational Control (continueq)

&)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

Management information system and
technology: To control over the business
activities, it allows close tracking of various
inputs and outputs of the Group’s business
such as inventory, products and customer
relationship and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system,
under which permissions and responsibility
of authorisation are clearly identified and
adequate records can be maintained in the
Control Systems;

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on
regular basis;

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of
any deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
acts as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities;

Safeguarding of assets: Regular physical
count of inventories, daily cash, movie
vouchers and ticket exchange coupons
for each cinema with reconciliation of
report generated from the ticketing system
are performed by Finance and Accounts
Department and reviewed by Internal Audit
Department; and

Service quality control: Regular review
on operational systems of cinema business
segment to ensure the service quality.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERERE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
(4) Financial Control

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Policies, procedures and systems are in
place to ensure proper accounting records are
maintained which provide complete, accurate
and timely accounting and management
information;

Financial budget and forecast of cinema
operation is prepared and reviewed regularly to
ensure any action can be taken to mitigate any
changes in conditions and market accordingly;

Financial management reports are provided
to all Directors and senior management
which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects in sufficient
detalils;

Operational reports on revenue, debtors’
ageing and internal financial analysis are
prepared to the management which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s operation performance;

Available fund report and cash flow
forecast are reviewed to monitor the cash
flows of the Group; and

Annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations.

Review of Internal Control

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal Audit
Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans should be reported to the Audit Committee
and the Board on timely basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management

M

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board
and the management based on (i) the severity of
the impact of the risks on the Group’s finance and
operations; and (i) the probability and frequency
that the risks will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risk as follows:

° Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of
the risk to an acceptable level or contingency
plan for possible loss scenarios.

° Risk control and monitoring — It involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not. Accidents and other situations involving
loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to
manage risks.

° Risk retention — The management may
decide that the risk rating is low enough that
the risk is acceptable level and no action
is required and the risk will continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not
increase to an unacceptable level.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERERE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Significant Risks and Control Measures

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessments.
Such significant risks of the Group and their
respective risk levels and key control measures are
set out below:

Occurrence of disaster events:

‘Act of God”, fire, natural disasters (e.g. severe
typhoons or inclement weather) or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as Covid-19, SARS, Ebola
or Avian Flu happening could have adversely effect
on the Group’s business and reputation.

52

Ensure all safety measures as required by the
governments in different jurisdictions such as
mainland China, Hong Kong and Malaysia are
fully implemented.

Keep update on development of disaster
events and follow the instructions and
guidance given by the local governments
and the Stock Exchange as well as other
professional bodies such as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
so as mitigate the impact of the events to the
Group.

Fire-proof material is used for cinema’s
renovation, exit lighting signboards, escape
route and fire extinguishers are put in a proper
place in the Group’s cinemas.

Develop an emergency plan, organise proper
insurance and give regular training to our staff
in first aid and knowledge of hygiene and
sanitation as well as evacuation procedures to
deal with occurrence of these events.

Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures and
a quick reference guide for departments’ use
in order to assist the Group to respond and
recover from these disasters quickly.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)

@

Significant Risks and Control Measures
(continued)

Competition in China theatrical market:

There is intense competition in China theatrical
market due to continuous opening of movie theaters
in mainland China as well as internet broadcasting
platform becoming more popular, especially with
5G. No assurance that demand in the film screening
will increase in line with or outpace the supply of
new cinemas.

o Dedicate to provide a premium theatrical
entertainment service and environment for the
audiences by equipping the Group’s cinemas
with the advanced visual and audio technology
to sustain its competitiveness.

o Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities in different social
media platforms from time to time in order to
attract more audiences.

° Provide different sources of on-line or off-line
ticketing services.

° Before commencement of a new site, market
analysis and projections are prepared by
Business Development Team and assessed by
Operation Team and the management.

o Diversify film exhibition business in different
markets like mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Malaysia.

Competition in entertainment business:

Film exhibition business is highly competitive
as it is subject to the availability and popularity
of alternative form of entertainment. There is
no assurance that the Group will sustain its
competitiveness in the entertainment industry
successfully.

° Periodically review and adjust the business
strategic plans to cope with the competition.

° Diversify the Group’s entertainment business
and expand its film exhibition business in due
course.
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TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)

54

@

Significant Risks and Control Measures
(continued)

Inherent risk on entertainment business:

Entertainment business including cinema operation
is inherently risky since it relies on the economic
success of any motion picture and the revenues
generated from this business depend primarily on
each film’'s public acceptance and its popularity,
which cannot be predicted with certainty.

° Stay alert to the changes in market trend,
audience’s needs and preferences and adjust
business strategic plans to cope with these
changes.

Cinema location and rental expenses:

Cinema rental expense is always a key cost
component of the Group. A significant fluctuation of
cinema rents may affect the Group’s profitability.

o Rental negotiation with landlord by senior
management to ensure the rental costs are
within budget.

o Explore cinema locations with good potential
at reasonable level, for instance, in May 2021,
the Group received an acceptance of offer
in relation to the leasing of Times Square
Cinema.

o Perform profit forecast to assess its financial
viability.

° Negotiate with landlords for granting rent
concessions during the period of Covid-19
pandemic.

The Company has used its best endeavours to manage
the above risks and continue to keep the focus on any
new emerging risks that are likely to exist in the days to

come
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness of
the Control Systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
and the Board had reviewed the Control Systems and
were not aware of any significant issues that would have
an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of
the Group’s operational, financial and compliance areas
of the Control Systems.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders and/or potential investors mainly in the following
ways: (i) the holding of annual general meeting ("AGM”) and
special general meetings, if any, which may be convened
for specific purposes which provide opportunities for the
Shareholders to communicate directly to the Board; (i) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
releases providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company’s
website at https://www.empculture.com; and (iv) investors/
analysts briefings and/or media conference (when necessary).

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the
Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to the Shareholders for the
2020 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and notices of all other general
meetings will be sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business
days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2020 AGM and the chairman/members
of the Board Committees and the external auditor were
available at the 2020 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company Secretary,
the Chairperson of the meeting had explained the procedures
for conducting a poll during such meeting.
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TEERERE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The
Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim
and final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attribution to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of the factors stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii)) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), the applicable laws of Bermuda and
the memorandum of association and Bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a
written requisition requiring a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)
to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must state
the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the Company
Secretary, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in
order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to Convene/Call General Meeting
(continued)

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than two months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them may convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionist”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to
the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition
signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less
than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that AGM is called for a date six weeks
or less after the copy has been deposited, such requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a person for election as a Director
The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries
can be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in
constitutional documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditor, Ernst & Young is independent and had recommended
the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the
2021 AGM. During the Year, Ernst & Young has rendered audit
services and certain non-audit services to the Group and the
remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as
follows:

the Company’s

Service rendered Bz R
Statutory audit EEEZ
Non-audit services IEE RS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR

EY:

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
staterments section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
Key audit matter How
BREKEE

BAREEXER
AREXFHAERBEATOHERHE  RA
BAMGEEVBREANELRRAEENSTH -
ZEZHETHEUGEMBRRBBETER
WIKREBERNE S NETREN » AT TEZ
FERRHEBNER - ATH TAE—FH
EEZTRNMESNOELIEUAERES -

AITERBITTARE B ELEAR

BHRRcBEEIFOMANEE  BIREFEE
ZIEREMOEME - HEN  ATTHNEXIEER
RRTARETFIMSEEMBRRENERR
AEBMERTNEZEF  NTHRTERE
FEOER  BREHSTREBEMATHIER -
7%[&MTZZ*AEM‘%EEE%%%@%EJ%T%T
E R o

our audit addressed the key audit matter

KTHNERNAEERRERSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

MR BERRBURERABEE 2 BEf

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had property, plant
and equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of-use assets
("ROU Assets”) with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$555,590,000 and HK$1,016,049,000,
respectively.

R2021%F6HA30H EBEEEWE #mLREBE(D
X BERRBDULCHAEEE(EREEE) 2R
H1E 5 Bl ) /&555,590,000/% 7T %1,016,049,000% 7T ©

- g

Emperor Culture Group Limited RZE
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EXLEXEEERAF

We evaluated management’s impairment assessment
of PP&E and ROU Assets. The key procedures
we performed on evaluating the methodology,
assumptions and estimates used in the impairment
assessment included, inter alia, the following:
RITHETERRBEDE BRI RREBAREREE
EZ BB c RITREF & ERENEMBLE -
BERLEFHRRNEREZEFBFE (KR ERE) N
NRIE:

o we assessed the key assumptions and estimates
used in management’s discounted cash flow
projections, including, inter alia, budgeted/
forecasted revenue and results of operations,
growth rates and discount rates, taking into
consideration the historical accuracy of the prior
year’s assumptions and estimates made by
management as appropriate;
RIFHETREEERRBERERASTEA
ZHARBRRERMGE  BEESPBE)EE EA
Hﬁz)\&i““*%ﬁ BRENBERE  EREER

EREBELNBEFEBRR LG ZE L EEE
@uma)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FAREXEE(E

Key audit matter

HARELEE

M- BERREURCAREE ZRENMG(E)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for PP&E and ROU Assets at the end
of each reporting period and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Impairment is determined by
assessing the recoverable amounts of the respective
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs
to which the respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate
and whether the respective recoverable amounts of
the CGUs or groups of CGUs are less than their
respective carrying amounts. As at 30 June 2021, the
recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs have
been determined by management based on value in
use calculations using cash flow projections specific to
the respective CGUs and applying respective discount
rates which reflect risks relating to the respective
CGUs.
SEEREREHRENFERETRDH A K -
FIEE BBERRBALERAEEERSSFEMEM
WEDR - BEDBBEFEESYE  EERREN
REtAREEFAv SR eELEU(REELEN])
FBEeELBEMNARNZARE SR UAREREESE
BUsReELBUENBBzZIREBEREER
HBEZGHRMEETE - N2021F6H30R - FREEE
BB B HEEBEANKAZREELE
VR ERERERAALRMERGELELIEA
Flaz R EnEREEFAEERE

Emperor Culture Group Limited

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RKITHELRNNEEREEXS R

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

we obtained an understanding of the current
and expected future developments of the
respective CGUs and factors that might affect
key assumptions and estimates of the respective
cash flow projections and discount rates applied;
RITTHMTEAREReELEUER REHRK
MERBL  AIRFERBESRERIERRER
Mt EE - AREEAMAE X

we involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used and
certain key assumptions and estimates made by
management, including, inter alia, the specific
discount rates and growth rates applicable to the
respective CGUs, with reference to market and
other relevant information;
RITABEEZERHEATL2ETS R HAME
BEMFEEREMANI AU RMAELE TH
BRERR LT BR(EPEBE)BEHREXREK
HRARNEReELABUZERE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HMRELSE

AREFZRSE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KTHNERNAEERARERSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

M BERREURCAREE ZRENMG(E)
The impairment testing of PP&E and ROU Assets
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of PP&E and ROU Assets and related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. Uncertainties
about certain of these assumptions and estimates are
particularly significant due to the current uncertain
economic outlook and market demand. The outcome
of impairment assessment could vary significantly if
different assumptions and estimates were applied.
ME BENREALERREEZREAATEE
BREEDHE - At hBRR - ZFHE - AT REBER
EXERAMBHRRTYE HISRREBAREBE
EENERSHERBERE - ARERITHENLEE
RIRkmBHER &ETHZEBRELMEFO I EERE
LREE - MERBIRNERE LG - BEFEHE
RAEGERAER -

We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of
the balances involved and the significant accounting
judgements and estimates required in determining the
recoverable amounts.
HREME#RZeEEA BEEEAIWESRTEE
AEXGTHE MG MATEIENHNEES
I8 o

The related disclosures about significant accounting
judgements and estimates and information about
impairment of PP&E and ROU Assets are included
in notes 3, 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
HEEXRSTHBRMEFARDE  HERREAR
ERAEEEZREERZEEERDBERNGZEE MK
WA TS~ 13K%14 ©
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we evaluated management’s assessment about
reasonable possible changes in certain key
assumptions and estimates; and
ROTHETEREHRNE THRBRLEFHNE
BA R BT R

we assessed the adequacy of related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

ATHETHAVBERRTHEBRENT BT -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

%gﬁﬁﬁ%&n'\éﬂﬂﬁiﬁiz,ﬁﬁ

AITRBEEEVZEGRE BMEAHKS
MHERERBEZIFNRERZR NERSE
ZER - BRIPERIEAR I BT AMBELL
FERS(EBREENB/RAT)ANTR BB EL
FERAAEAHNIRERRBBEIRK
BUFEEMNEEM PNEERSH TURE
BARTTEERBMREPHEASFTEIRE -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HERBIZHMBENEZBEELEBALER
independent auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter. A3 o
Ernst & Young LK & 51 HF 5 AT
Certified Public Accountants MEGETA
27/F, One Taikoo Place 55
979 King's Road ) £
Quarry Bay &2 BI795R
Hong Kong N3 —BE271&
28 September 2021 2021 9H28H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBEmKk

Year ended 30 June 2021 & Z£2021F6H30H I FfE

REVENUE KA 5 192,908 126,245
Cost of sales 85 & KR (81,736) (50,342)
Gross profit EX 111,172 75,903
Other income and gains Hfb g A K 2= 6 11,942 6,186
Selling, marketing and other cinema HE - MinHEREKEM

operating expenses BBt & i R 2 (248,867) (229,942)
General and administrative expenses —MEITHRAX (39,630) (64,234)
Other expenses, net Hi X 58 (1,594) (92,329)
Finance costs B 15 B AR 8 (61,101) (49,786)
LOSS BEFORE TAX B B A0 5 18 (228,078) (354,202)
Income tax credit gt % 11 = 976
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EEEFE (228,078) (353,226)
Attributable to: AL

Owners of the parent ISI/NCIE7 PPN (219,775) (342,181)

Non-controlling interests FEVE IR HE = (8,303) (11,045)

(228,078) (353,226)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BRAAEEREEFA

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEtERER

OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HARK &% 12 HKS$(0:07)7c 7t BRI ORR w0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
meEEmElEE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6H30H |- F[E

LOSS FOR THE YEAR EEFR (228,078)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hiz2mkz(FE)
(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that RE & AT r[E #7748 2 18 2
may be reclassified to profit or loss in  ZE 2 E Kz (EE) -
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of &GN 2 FE 5

foreign operations =8 23,556
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR HEX2HEEH&AE
THE YEAR (204,522)
Attributable to: P4k :
Owners of the parent IS/NCIE PPN (196,807)
Non-controlling interests VAR M = (7,715)

(204,522)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEEEBEERAT
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(353,226)

(8,732)

(361,958)

(350,303)
(11,655)

(361,958)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

30 June 2021 202146H30H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME I RRE 13 555,590 524,524
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 1,016,049 1,064,327
Prepayments, deposits and other AN - e R EME

receivables W 3R 18 43,552 36,338
Total non-current assets kRBEEHAE 1,615,191 1,625,189
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 16 1,751 2,110
Trade receivables B SR 17 8,065 2,532
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - e R EME

receivables W 3R 18 38,393 38,758
Financial assets at fair value through EARBEFABRZ

profit or loss EELE E 15 5,489 7130
Cash and cash equivalents BeReEED 19 56,858 40,625
Total current assets RBEEHE 110,556 91,155
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and BHREMNR - HAthfERS

accruals REEFTER 20 67,888 48,939
Contract liabilities EHaE 21 19,332 15,218
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERITREMEER

borrowings 22 7,008 2,000
Lease liabilities HEARE 14 94,777 50,457
Amounts due to related companies P& Bl & R R FRIE 31(b) 10,122 3,709
Total current liabilities nBEEARE 199,127 120,323
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES KRB EETE (88,571) (29.168)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAE

LIABILITIES 1,526,620 1,596,021
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Provisions R 23 46,211 44,816
Interest-bearing bank and other FERERITREMER

borrowings 22 282,365 146,313
Lease liabilities HERRE 14 1,101,430 1,103,756
Amount due to non-controlling interests JEfTIEIERREZR KB 31(c) 43,589 43,589
Total non-current liabilities kRBABEHELE 1,473,595 1,338,474
Net assets EEFHE 53,025 257,547
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

202146 H430H

30 June 2021

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the B AFEAAEGEES
parent

Issued capital BEITIRA 25 32,133 32,133

Reserves fiE 1 27 64,733 261,540
96,866 293,673

Non-controlling interests FERER (43,841) (36,126)

Total equity AT 53,025 257,547

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
SR
Executive Director

BITEF

70
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

Year ended 30 June 2021

H E202156A30H L FE

At 1 July 2019 #2019%7518 32133 912,843 50 58,658 (7,247) (352,461) 643,976 (24,471) 619,505
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - (342,181) (342,181)  (11,045) (353,226)
Other comprehensive loss  #EHM2EEE:
for the year:
Exchange differences ERENEHBL
related to foreign ERES
operations - - - - (8,122) - (8,122) (610)  (8,732)
Total comprehensive loss £E2EBRLR
for the year - - - - (8,122) (342,181) (350,303) (11,655) (361,958)
At 30 June 2020 #2020F6A308 32,133  912,843* 50 58,658" (15,369)* (694,642)* 293,673 (36,126) 257,547
At 1 July 2020 R2020F7A 18 912,843 (15,369) (694,642) 293,673 (36,126) 257,547
Loss for the year FEFE = = (219,775) (219,775) (8,303) (228,078)
Other comprehensive FEHMZENRE:
income for the year:
Exchange differences ERENEHBL
related to foreign ERES
operations 588 23,556
Total comprehensive FE2AKE/
income/(loss) for the (BB EE
year 22,968 (219,775) (196,807)  (7,715) (204,522)
At 30 June 2021 #2021F6A308 32,133  912,843* 58,658* 7,599* (914,417)* 96,866 (43,841) 53,025
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBRAKNSKAUBMRARZEEHEH

HK$64,733,000 (2020: HK$261,540,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

REXLEXEEMARATF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6H30H |- F[E

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax:
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

Loss on disposal/write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value loss/(gain) of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss, net

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment of right-of-use assets

REKETBHZRE
wE

B % B S 18 -

HEIEE

81 75 B AR

A 2 WA
KELHEAZ R
SREBEHRBN
e TR

HE W - #
BEhREZER
BAREBEFAER
LEMEBEZAR
BEEE,(Ka)
% F

ME - BEhERBZ
mE
EREEEZITE
B 5 R 2 FE
ME - BEMERBZ
R
EREEEZRE

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in trade payables, other
payables and accruals

Increase in contract liabilities

Increase in amounts due to related
companies

7D, ()
cEY TES VY4

(32 hn)

BAR - B MEAME

LEey

ZASEEFABRZ

BoRMAR - B R

XK e AT B R AN

BHAEEM
JE 1~ B8 2 2 ) SRIR4E 0

Net cash flows from/(used in) RE (AR RETH
operating activities ZHREREFE
72 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERAF
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(228,078)
61,101
(1,501)

(32,761)

(CL)

72,913
106,940
1,662

(19,792)
492

AL
(3,422)
1,709

13,222
2,724

10,122

(2,131)

(354,202)

49,786
(1,361)

1,172

302
57,311
90,195

38,040
53,987

(64,770)
(1,491)

2,076
(362)
163,351

9,237
4,488

112,529




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

Year ended 30 June 2021 & Z£2021F6H30H |- FfE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZTEBZRSE

ACTIVITIES RE
Interest received 24 F 8 74 246
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEE# % - #E MR E

equipment HH (73,188) (346,051)
Net cash flows used in investing ARREZTHZHS

activities REFHE (73,114) (345,805)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETEBEZRS

ACTIVITIES RE
Advances from/(repayment to) related kB ((E&)EE QA

companies ZER (3,709) 2,020
New bank loan MEBRITER 22 5,000 2,000
Other loan raised FrEEEmER 22 131,000 144,000
Principal portion of lease payments MENRAEEH (20,214) (12,335)
Interest portion of lease payments BENZKAEE D (22,234) (25,686)
Interest paid ENSEAESS (1)) (18)
Net cash flows from financing REMEZTEBEZRS

activities REFHE 89,775 109,981
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BeRBELZEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B0, GR D) %8 14,530 (123,295)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FzRekBeE

beginning of the year B 40,625 166,465
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXR& &) v 52 2 F 58

net 1,703 (2,545)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FXzBEeRBEEZE

THE END OF THE YEAR BEY 56,858 40,625
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH R&RHASEEYLEE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i
Cash and bank balances RERRITHER 56,858 40,625
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021

1.

74

H 2202146 A30B IFFE
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 27 March 1992 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
its principal place of operation is located at 28th Floor,
Emperor Group Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Group was primarily involved in the following
principal activities:

o cinema operation
o investments in films and a variety of cultural events

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor
Culture Holdings”), which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
Albert Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited (“AY
Entertainment Holdings”), which was incorporated in the
BVI, is the ultimate holding company of the Company, and
is entirely held by Alto Trust Limited, being the trustee
of Albert Yeung Entertainment Discretionary Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”).

For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, all companies directly or indirectly controlled
by respective private discretionary trusts set up by
Dr. Albert Yeung other than the Group are collectively
referred to as the “Emperor Group” and AY Entertainment
Holdings and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to
as the “AY Entertainment Holdings Group”.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 £ #f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 &, £202166H30H I F &
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAGIREBEER (&)

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries EEMBARIZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRR ETEWBRRIZFHFBHOT
follows:

Emperor Cinema Group Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
REEPNERRRAR RBRAES E REER
Emperor Cinema Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Cinema operation
EEEYHERARAR 3 BT BlreE
Emperor Cinemas (Chma) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
REEPH(PEDER Bk 2B T REER
Emperor Cinemas (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100% Cinema operation
EEEYHORM)BRAA 3! 25,0002 BlreE
Emperor Cinemas (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (note (iv)) Malaysia MYR100,000 - 100% Cinema operation
ELBRYA(BRAR)ERRA M Z (1Y) SRAT 1000005 RETLE ElkeE
Goldcore Holdings Limited BVI US§1 100% - Investment holding
EEARES 1ET REAR
Multi-Wide Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Film and event
BEXBERAA B 1B investments and
investment in
securities
EYRRERE
RERZERE
Sino Spirit International Limited BVI US$100 - 55% Investment holding
(Sino Spirit’) KEREUHE 100% 7T REZR
(Sino Spirit])
Emperor Cinemas (Anhui) Company Limited People’'s Republic RMB32,800,000 - 55% Cinema operation
(notes (i) and (/’/'/)) of China (“PRC") A R™32,800,0007C BheE
EEBYM(RE)ER Mainland China
(Hiat ()R (i) REAREN
(@l
R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6H30H |- F[E

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RAREEER(EF)
FRMBARZER(E)

Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited PRC/Mainland RMB95,000,000 - 100% Cinema operation
(notes (i) and (iii)) China (note (i) Bl

BEEFWULR)BRAR (M) R (i) RE/RER AR #95,000,0007T

(7))

Emperor Cinemas (Chongaing) Company PRC/Mainland RMB33,000,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (notes (i) and (i) China A K #33,000,0007T B

RETYW(ER)BRRR M Z0)R (i) HE /R R

Emperor Cinemas (Chengdu) Company Limited ~ PRC/Mainland RMB23,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
(notes (i) and (i) China A R #23,500,0007C e E

RETYW(KE) BR DA ()R (i) RE R E R

Emperor Cinemas (Shenyang) Company PRC/Mainland RMB15,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (notes (i) and (i) China A R #15,500,0007C B g

REEFRRORE)ERAR (W)X (i) mE/REN

Notes: Kt -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

These are wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

The amount represents the registered capital of Emperor
Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited including its branches
which comprise Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited
(Shenzhen Futian Branch) (X £2F & (b 7)) AR A A F I
&M 5 A &), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited
(Shenzhen Branch) (2T &M (It 7)) BBR ABLEYIH 2 F])
and Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Ganzhou
Branch) (EEE WM (UL R) BRAREIND RF)).

The English names of these entities registered in the PRC
are directly translated from their Chinese names as they do

not register any official English names.

The Chinese name is for identification purpose only.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HERRhBERINIIEBEDRE -

ZEHEXREEFHUL D ARAF(E
BREEZWUELR) BRAFTRIER D
A REEZHUE ) BRAB RN D
RAREEFEFH (UL R) ERAREMND
RENZEMER -

AR 2 E R P BT 2 238 3T B S A
EREXERT > FAREZ ZXRBEIHR
WEZPXEHEEEBEMR

FXXEMEHRER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EERB LRV ZARBIWEBE AT
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected NEEFEFEEENBRNAEBREE

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of FEERBLOZMBLRAR  HALXEE
the net assets of the Group, or are significant investment LERKREEZERRAG - EERA - BT

holding companies of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 RHEEE

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial assets which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The outbreak of novel coronavirus (“Covid-19”) since
early 2020 has disrupted the business operations and
developments of the Group. The Group has closely
monitored the development of Covid-19 outbreak and
the extent of the impact depends on the duration of the
pandemic and the implementation of relevant policies
and protective measures by respective governments. The
Group has paid close attention to any significant changes
of situation and has evaluated their impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial position, financial performance and
cash flows, as well as financial resources available to the
Group in the short to medium term.

The Group had a net loss attributable to owners of the
parent of HK$219,775,000 (2020: HK$342,181,000) for
the year ended 30 June 2021 and net current liabilities
of HK$88,571,000 (2020: HK$29,168,000) and net assets
of HK$53,025,000 (2020: HK$257,547,000) as at 30 June
2021. The Group’s net loss for the year included certain
non-cash expenses/charges in an aggregate amount of
HK$179,853,000. The Group had total cash and cash
equivalents of HK$56,858,000 as at 30 June 2021,

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 F 3R
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H20205 ) A BRES(HEHESE
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LER AEEEBYEHNTRERIE
BEZERBERL MXETEREDORR
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DREEMERZEREL X O H
REHAREEZHEEMHINRR - BHBR
BRBSRE UWRAKEREHHA
BB2MBERZEE -

REBREH E2021F6 830 IEFFE 2 &
NEIMEE A B FE 18 5219,775,000%8 7T
(20204 : 342,181,000 7T) * LA K 2021
F6H30H 2t & & & )% 58 /&88,571,000
7 70 (20204 : 29,168,000/& JT)° M &
& % 18 Al 453,025,000/ 7T (20204 :
257,547,000/ 7T) - AEBRAFE 2 %
EEAEE TR Y BRcHEE
H# £179,853,000/% 7T - 7 2021F 6 30
H AEBZHESMREEEBEMRES
56,858,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021

2.1

78

H 2202146 A30B IFFE
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to attain growth and cash
positive operations in the near future. Active cost-saving
and financial resources improvement measurements
to streamline/enhance the Group’s existing operations
and to focus on improving the financial resources of
the Group have been implemented/contemplated by
the Group to control its operating expenses and cash
outflows in the current and coming years and to enable
the Group to revitalise itself to take advantage of any
growth opportunities in the near future (the “Improvement
Measures”).

In addition, the Group has obtained a long term
loan facility from a related party in amount of
HK$1,200,000,000 (the “Other Loan Facility”), of which
an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$275,000,000
was utilised as at 30 June 2021. The Group has also
obtained a revolving loan facility from a bank in amount
of HK$20,000,000 (the “Bank Loan Facility”), of which
an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$7,000,000
was utilised as at 30 June 2021. Further details of such
facilities are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company have evaluated relevant
conditions and events that are known or could be
reasonably forecasted/estimated. Based on such
evaluation, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, in light of the measures/arrangements
contemplated/implemented to date, including, inter alia,
the Improvement Measures, and the availability of the
Other Loan Facility and the Bank Loan Facility, the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements for the
foreseeable future and, accordingly, it is appropriate for
the Group to continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing these consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX(CEXEEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 REEE(E)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the vyear
ended 30 June 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 REEE(E)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

2.2

RERBEEEE

i NE B K E— N B AR 224
AIERHER)ZMBRAR 2 EE (BT
BE)RAE  (VEFFERER R
B R (i) RN RIGE L E58
KR ()T AE 2 A EIE - (i) R
BEMKREZAREER(i)IE R EMA
AEL BB EE - EAREME
HREANERZAEE RGN EERH
DHREEEIREEN(WER)  RIB
NWASEECERHENBEEXAER
ZEET AR -

B HRRBREZEH

AEEE L AFEYM I HREERRA2018
FHBHREIEZERRTINRETE
B ELEL -

Amendments to Definition of a Business BEAYBMERER HEZITE
HKFRS 3 FIH®21EF
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BEEMBMELER FEEEHE
HKFRS 9, FO% - BB GE
HKAS 39 and AR 39558 &
HKFRS 7 BN HREER
FTH 2B
Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent BEAYGWMERR HORELEHE
HKFRS 16 Concessions F169 2185 B2 E
Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent B EERN 2021F6H30H #
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond F165% 2B AT Fr e E R
30 June 2021 (early adopted) VichNookic -4
(IRE & 4)
Amendments to Definition of Material BAFEUNEIR EAZ2EE
HKAS 1 and REEGTER
HKAS 8 F85 27T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2021

H 22021F6A30H ILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out
a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes
new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated
definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship,
prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021

H E202156A30H L FE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

82

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all
of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or after
1 July 2020. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2021

H 22021F6A30H ILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021
extends the availability of a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic by 12
months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
only to rent concessions for which any reduction
in lease payments affects only payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are
met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for
annual periods beginning or after 1 April 2021 and
earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on
1 July 2020 and applied the practical expedient
during the year ended 30 June 2021 to all rent
concessions granted by the lessors that affected
only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022 as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. A reduction in the lease payments arising
from the rent concessions of HK$32,761,000 has
been accounted for as a variable lease payment
by derecognising part of the lease liabilities and
crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June
2021.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments
did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts® ©

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® ®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 412

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

1

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1

January 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CHEMEBERER 2ERBYE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is still in the process of accessing the
impact of the above new and revised HKFRSs. Further
information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if
the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not
required to restate the comparative information.
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Year ended 30 June 2021

2.3
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H E202156A30H L FE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’'s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CHEMEBERER 2ERBYE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements in the
period of initial application.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in |lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investments in film productions
and listed equity securities at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which
the asset belongs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group and the
sponsoring employers of the post-employment
benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

10% or over the lease terms,
whichever is higher

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33%%

equipment
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and

the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

94

(a

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost
and fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at FVPL, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at FVPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
depends on their classification as follows:

assets

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at FVPL are also recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
FVPL. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the FVPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at FVPL.
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Year ended 30 June 2021
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at
FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group may consider a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

100 Emperor Culture Group Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables and measures the lifetime ECLs on a specific
basis according to management's assessment of the
recoverability of each individual receivable. Management
considers the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding, historical experience and
forward-looking information to determine the recoverability
of the trade receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised costs (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EESTHBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when
a contractual obligation under the terms of lease
arrangements has arisen to reinstate a leased property at
the end of the lease. Reinstatement costs are provided at
the value of the expected costs to settle the obligation at
the end of the reporting period using estimated cash flows
and an equivalent asset is recognised and depreciated
over the term of the lease arrangements. The estimated
future costs of reinstatement are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EESTHBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it
is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than 1 year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than 1
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is 1 year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Revenue from box office takings is recognised when
the relevant film is exhibited to the customer;

(b) Revenue from the sale of concession goods is
recognised at the point in time when the customer
takes possession of the food and beverage
offerings;

(c) Revenue from the sale of other products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EESTHBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(d) Revenue from screen advertising is recognised
when the performance obligation is satisfied,
generally on a straight-line basis over the period of
the relevant agreement.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred in
the process of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within 3 months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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e I RS RER I EE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the Group when the employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operates in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes in
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong and Mainland China
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
the service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EESTHBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part
of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at
which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE
Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than HK$. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into HK$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into HK$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew
the leases. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal.
After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of
the lease term for leases of its cinemas due to the
significance of these cinemas to its operations and
the significant leasehold improvements undertaken (or
expected to be undertaken) over the term of the relevant
lease contracts that are expected to have significant
economic benefit for the Group when the option to extend
those leases becomes exercisable.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

110 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX(CEXEEERAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 ¥

ERGEHE R (E)

# i (42
EEsEERESHANEERYRZEX
¥
AEBREEZHESLEREEZENTEE
B - AEEERHBHEFTEERSITE
BHEMBEEE BEREEZEMAERT
RGBS E e HERNEEER - &£
B AR WEEEREHRIBERD
REAREYMRFFHRESHEE TS
ZABEREBHTRITITEBEEN R
N AASEEENFERESY -

AEEKGEEBESREBEHN—8
D ARRFREHEEEAAERE
E MRABEECOHRARCETHNE
AHERRGERET) BHRER
ZEMENEERETER/AKET
KEREHER -

T RERR
TXHMARSIBEAEREE 2 REE
RTESRFERATUEARE &
AEBEBAATZEBBMR - ARA
JERARGFE 2 B3 T HEE EE 2 H A
EENOR -

FEMEEZRE
AEBRERERNRIE2LIFCREE
(BREEREEE)REFEEMBER
ReoAlERFHRARZIFEREENT
3Bk E A RE BOX M E 2 BF SR B 1T R
BAR - HEEXREEELBEML2E®@
BB AR Y@ g 58 (B E A EE R
ERAEEFRAEEMETZIESE)
AFERE - AREERLEERAZE
BORBEBRUEEZANRNRAFH
ERXRGMBLZBELAABER 25 ER
MHEZEEZEMAATE - E5HE
EREER EEREAMGTREBEEL
BeEsBUzERARRESRE I
BERABZMBAXRUFGEZSTERSRE
ZHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets at the end of each reporting
period and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs or group of CGUs to
which the respective property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets relate and whether the respective
recoverable amounts of the CGUs or groups of CGUs
are less than their respective carrying amounts. For the
current year, the recoverable amounts of the respective
CGUs or group of CGUs have been determined by
management based on value in use calculations using
cash flow projections specific to the respective CGUs
and applying respective discount rates which reflect
risks relating to the respective CGUs. The carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets as at 30 June 2021 were HK$555,590,000
(2020: HK$524,524,000) and HK$1,016,049,000 (2020:
HK$1,064,327,000), respectively. Further details are
given in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits

The impairment provisions for trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits are based on assumptions
about ECLs. The Group uses judgements in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in these assumptions and estimates could materially affect
the results of the assessment and it may be necessary
to make an additional impairment charge to profit or loss.
Further details of (i) trade receivables and (ii) deposits
and other receivables are given in notes 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments at
FVPL

When the fair values of financial instruments at FVPL
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair values are measured using
valuation techniques, including, inter alia, the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are
taken from relevant observable markets/sources where
possible, but where this is not feasible, certain degrees
of judgements and estimates are required in establishing
fair values. The valuation requires management to make
certain judgements, estimates and assumptions about
model inputs, including, inter alia, projected cash flows,
discount rate and other factors. Changes in assumptions
and estimates relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. Further
details are given in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Group generally estimates the IBR using observable
inputs when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2021

4.

HZE2021F6A30H IEFE
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services, and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Cinema operation
(b) Investments in films and cultural events

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss
before tax except that bank interest income, unallocated
gains/losses, non-lease-related finance costs as well as
unallocated corporate and other expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents,
investments in listed equity securities included in financial
assets at FVPL and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6H30H |- F[E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)
Year ended 30 June 2021/At 30 June 2021

REsBERE

#H £2021566A308 Lk F E HA2021F

114

6H30H

Segment revenue (note 5) DEWA N #25)
Sales to external customers HINEPHE 192,908 = 192,908
Segment results DHEE (219,283) (797) (220,080)
Reconciliation: EDg
Bank interest income |ATH B WA 74
Fair value gain on financial assets at XA BEFAEBZEZ

FVPL, net CREEZAAEE

W & % HE 801

Unallocated corporate and other KBS EREMAS

expenses (3,745)
Finance costs (other than interest on  BIF A (RE&GEF &

lease liabilities) BN (5,128)
Loss before tax B 750 A1 &5 18 (228,078)
Segment assets PHEEE 1,663,114 1,668,603
Reconciliation: Eg
Corporate and other unallocated assets M™% M HE M KD EE 57,144
Total assets wAE 1,725,747
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,382,412 1,382,462
Reconciliation: Eg
Corporate and other unallocated TEREMKRESBRE

liabilities 290,260
Total liabilities waE 1,672,722
Other segment information HibpEER

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value loss on financial assets at

ME BERRBZTE
EREEEZTE

BARBEFABRSEZSHE

FVPL BEZANEBEER
Capital expenditure® BEARZ
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant # BARATHBRERNEWE MBS REMH -

and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE

Year ended 30 June 2021

H E202156A30H L FE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Year ended 30 June 2020/At 30 June 2020

4. BEIFER(E

H £2020F6A308 It F E 20204
6H30H

Segment revenue (note 5) DEWA N #25)
Sales to external customers HINEPHE 126,245 - 126,245
Segment results DHEEE (348,036) 302 (347,734)
Reconciliation: ik -
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 246
Fair value loss on financial assets at AR EEFAEZZ

FVPL, net CREEZANAEE

B85 (694)

Unallocated corporate and other KBS PEREMAS

expenses (3,689)
Finance costs (other than interest on  BIF K A (RE&EF &

lease liabilities) B 5h) (2,331)
Loss before tax bR AR 1B (354,202)
Segment assets PHEEE 1,668,304 6,222 1,674,526
Reconciliation: Eg
Corporate and other unallocated TEREMRESEE

assets 41,818
Total assets mEE 1,716,344
Segment liabilities PEERE 1,309,537 50 1,309,587
Reconciliation: Eg-
Corporate and other unallocated TtEREMRESBE

liabilities 149,210
Total liabilities FER=RTy 1,458,797
Other segment information HitsBEH
Depreciation of property, plant and - KERBHBZWE

equipment 57,311 - 57,311
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZNE 90,195 - 90,195
Impairment of property, plant and M BBERREBEZRE

equipment 38,040 - 38,040
Impairment of right-of-use assets FRABEEZRE 53,987 - 53,987
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, H& M - #EX

plant and equipment BBz EE 1,172 - 1,172
Fair value gain on financial assets at R ARBEFAEBZ 24

FVPL MEEZAABERZ - 392 392
Capital expenditure* BAART 1,015,905 - 1,015,905

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6H30H |- F[E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

Mainland China A A
Hong Kong e
Other region in Asia Pacific R E A i =

REsBER(E)

ih 15 & F
(@ HHIEFZWA

133,201 65,891
59,462 56,361
245 3,993

192,908 126,245

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

Mainland China R A
Hong Kong G

Macau B P

Other region in Asia Pacific I8 R H b =

Lt ANERTYAR PR i R &

(b) FRBEE

589,558 586,798
704,683 718,125
261,550 265,656

15,848 18,272

1,571,639 1,688,851

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments.

Information about major customers
The Group did not have revenues from any single

customer accounting for 10% or more of the total revenue
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &
5. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

5. WA
AEEZWADHTMT -

Revenue from contracts with REFEFEH2ZWA
customers
Income from cinema operation KEBPT & E 2 A 192,908 126,245
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNZWA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@ WAERMAD

Types of goods or services & @ = iR % 2 B
Box office takings ERKA 164,097 100,851
Sale of concession goods B EmEE 11,684 11,859
Screen advertising services FHEESRYE 7,116 7,348
Others E b 10,011 6,187
Total revenue from contracts with  REFF AL Z WA BEE

customers 192,908 126,245
Geographical markets i & T 45
Mainland China R A 133,201 65,891
Hong Kong BB 59,462 56,361
Other region in Asia Pacific 2K H i = 245 3,993

192,908 126,245

TRBETNBREHVIAGHEE
YWRABERNERZBAZER:

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:

Short-term advances received WEEFEHFEARIE:
from customers:
Cinema operation bt & & 9,768
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX LEZEBEERLQF 17
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e BT RS HRER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6A30H It FE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)
(b) Performance obligations

118

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Box office takings

The performance obligation is satisfied when the film
is exhibited to the customer and payment in advance
is normally required.

Sale of concession goods

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point
in time when the customer takes possession of the
goods and payment is received upon delivery.

Screen advertising services

The performance obligation is generally satisfied
over time when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits as the Group
makes the cinema available for screening of
advertisements over the period of the agreement,
while certain payments in advance are normally
required.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed
because all the remaining performance obligations
are part of respective contracts that have an original
expected duration of 1 year or less.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX(CEXEEERAT
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BREE
FAAEERHNETHNERS MM
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EEKA
BHEEINEFPBEERREN
MEF—RBERELMAR -
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EE R BORE RN
[P 2 15 30 FE 255 B IS R A+
A MEEWELNE THA -

ERAIITRE DL DEEHTE
MBECREREE D REMX) R
ZERYERE  DEMEGHRTE
MBEERRETHRIFH AT
BRI —ED -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE

Year ended 30 June 2021
6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

H E202156A30H L FE

HA W A R WK &
Hit A Rz 2 ST

Interest income from: FMBWAKS :
- Bank balances - RITERF 246
- Deposits paid -BfEe 1,115
Government subsidies* 1B T 475 B 4,811
Others Hi 14
6,186
* The government subsidies mainly represented subsidies . BB EZERE THEARMKEIHE

received by certain subsidiaries from PRC'’s local government
authorities and subsidies received under Employment
Support Scheme, Cinema Subsidy Scheme and Food License
Holders Subsidy Scheme of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these government
subsidies.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2021

7.

120

H E202156A30H L FE

7. BRBIAIEE

AEE 2 BBATEBE GG GEA)T

FIEIEFH

LOSS BEFORE TAX
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
Cost of inventories sold* EEFE KA
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- - MBEERBEZ
equipment** TE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets** CREEEZINE
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R &
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEABFEZ
measurement of lease liabilities** HER
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EE®FHSZ(BFES
directors’ remuneration (note 9))**: B <& LA SN (A7 3£9)) ** -
Wages, salaries, bonuses and IE #He - EAK
allowances )=
Pension scheme contributions RIKSEF B R
(defined contribution schemes)” (EREHRETED "
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets XA BETABZ Z
at FVPL, net* TREEZANEE
BE (W) FaEe
- Mandatorily classified as such, - BHSBERLER -
including those held for trading BEBEEERE
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE M E - s
plant and equipment kEBzEE
Impairment of trade receivables* B Z R ZRE
Impairment of property, plant and ME- - WBERRBEZ
equipment* RN
Impairment of right-of-use assets* EREEEZRE"
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N ZE R HE
# Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of #
profit or loss.
* Included in “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated *
statement of profit or loss.
" As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions "
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes
in future years (2020: Nil).
o Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of o
HK$72,562,000 (2020: HK$56,975,000); depreciation
of right-of-use assets of HK$103,857,000 (2020:
HK$86,625,000); lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities of HK$797,000 (2020:
HK$313,000) and employee benefit expenses of
HK$31,865,000 (2020: HK$28,930,000) are included in
“Selling, marketing and other cinema operating expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 “F &R

3,910 3,559
72,913 57,311
106,940 90,195
1,400 1,200
1,322 313
56,107

7,069

63,176

302

1172

38,040

53,987

(1,526) 2,898

AAGZABEERANZIHERAK] -
ARG RERAZIEMEASFE] -

MR2021F 6 A30H -« 78 & B I £ 58 Uk i 3K
LURL D E R R REFE 2 RIKE 58 4 5
(20204 : #) °

W2 - B R ER B 2 HT 72,562,000% TT
(20204 : 56,975,000/ 7T) : (EFFAEEE 2
#r #103,857,0007% 7T (20204F : 86,625,000
B AAMEEGEFE2HENR
797,0007% 7T (20204F : 313,0007 JT) M &
& 8 48 % F 31,865,000/ T (20204 :
28,930,000/ 7T) st A reiBm RN 2 [
& MHBEEREMEREERZ]-
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e I RS RER I EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 &, £202166H30H I F &
FINANCE COSTS 8. BEFFEH A

8.

Interest on bank and other borrowings R 17 & EhE & &8 2,331
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 47,455
49,786
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BEBXESEMAN(ERRA]) -
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the B BECRAMEHI)E383(1)@) ~ (b) * (c) &
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), HEREB(RBAI(FEBEESHEER R
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance BI)E2EFHEE  ~REEEEMEMT

and Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

Fees ik 1,660
Other emoluments: H b B2 -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e TEA KOERL -
Pension scheme contributions RIKSEF BT -
1,660
(a) Independent non-executive directors @ BIYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive AEEINTFTRIUIIENTESZH
directors during the year were as follows: ca N

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PR 3% 2+
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen A ZERETE 220
Ms. Tam Sau Ying EACE S Gun 220
660
There were no other emoluments payable to the RAFE  BEEFNEMESINST
independent non-executive directors during the year B IEMITE F 2 B & (20205 :
(2020: Nil). ) o
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX LEZEBEERLQF 121
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e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6H30H |- F[E

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors

The fees paid to executive directors during the year
were as follows:

SEHER L

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Mr. Wong Chi Fai mEEEE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander 5B #E 5t £
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes FFAM AT 22+

9. EEME(E

(b) BITES
REEINTFRTEEZRSMT

250
250
250

1,000

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year did
not include any directors (2020: Nil). Details of the
remuneration for the year of the five (2020: five) highest
paid employees who are not a director of the Company
are as follows:

RAFE  BMEEFREBEEMLEE
MEIRAEREEMHE

10. TEGREHESR
REFE RASEHEADTREC
i 2 % (20204 « %) - BMFADANES
2 B4 (2020F B REH REAZFE
HMFEMT

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits
Pension scheme contributions

& F

FehkHMEHESR

BARE 5 IR

2,445
123

2,568

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

TR T EHEEANAZEEEERFHESR
AEWT:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

£ %1,000,000/% 7T
1,000,0018 7T &
1,500,000/% 7T

During the year, no emolument was paid or payable by
the Group to the non-director highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for the loss of office (2020: Nil).

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Year ended 30 June 2021 & Z£2021F6H30H |- FfE

11. INCOME TAX . e

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year (2020: Nil).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and
the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda and the BVI.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the current and prior years as the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China either had
no assessable profits arising in Mainland China or had
available tax losses brought forward from previous years to
offset their assessable profits generated during the current
and prior years.

No provisions for Macau Complementary Tax and
Malaysia Corporate Income Tax have been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Macau and
Malaysia for the current and prior years.

Current — Hong Kong BNHR — &8

REBEREREENES R IRBE - 1
THARASERAFERBEREEEL
{E fA] /& SR 504t A (20204 « 48 ©

REBRERRBRZBEENHER
B AEBEAREMNEBRIESE
BEMEMAER -

AEEBRANFERBEFERERPE
ARKMBEXMERIELEE - 1))
H P07 £ B 70 A B P A SZ B Y B A )
150 17 PP R A0 b E A AT (AT FE AR TR A -
SEEARMBBEFENA AT BEIR
NEHAFENBEFEELENERK

it Fl) o

AEBBERFIFESHAR L ERA
SREMEHELEE  WIBARAS
BRAFENRBEFEMERRARS
PRPHGE A A ERBE A

Charge for the year FERX -
Deferred (note 24) B RE (f1 i 24) (976)
Income tax credit FrgfiE % (976)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX LEZEBEERLQF 123
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e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2021

11.

H E202156A30H L FE

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory rate for Hong Kong, in which the
principal place of operation of the Company is located
and some of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
domiciled, to the tax credit at the Group’s effective tax
rate is as follows:

Bk 75 A1 8 18

Loss before tax

. FrEs(E)
BARPETELEWMHRARR LD X
BB D A FIE 0 BB A E B E A E
BRERBBATEE 2 HELSRIEEE
BEEHESEIHEEERNT

Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
Different tax rates enacted

by overseas authorities 1 =&
Income not subject to tax BEH 2 WA
Expenses not deductible for tax PRI 2 A
Tax losses not recognised RER AR B

Tax losses utilised from previous
periods

Others H A

IREBEFEMEI6.5%TEY
T 18 (20204 : 16.5%)
&SN ) E 2R R

BEMEIB2HEER

Tax credit at the Group’s effective
tax rate

B %

BAREERMEAE

(228,078) (354,202)
(37,633) (58,443)
(8,279) (10,463)
(1,511) (583)
6,035 20,752
34,232 38,495
(581) -
3,737 9,266
(976)

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

124

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount for
the year ended 30 June 2021 is based on the loss for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of HK$219,775,000 (2020: HK$342,181,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of the Company of approximately 3,213,341,000 (2020:
3,213,341,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 30 June
2021 and 2020 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 30 June
2021 and 2020.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 “F &}

12. BRFEBERSEEABLEER
& 18

HAK

H E=2021F6A30HIEFE - BREXRE
BEENREBESAREERIZEARAKE
€ 2 FE15E518 219,775,000 7T (2020 4F :
342,181,000/ /L) R A R A A A FE B %
17 38 A% 00 4 15 81 493,213,341,000 8%
(20204 : 3,213,341,000% ) 51 & o

8

M E = 2021F M 202056 A30H IFF &
AEBVELBEREYE DHTYE
B W TR R A = 20214F K 2020
FOASRA L FEMEHR2BREAEIE
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e I RS RER I EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 &, £202166H30H I F &
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - HBERRHE

30 June 2021 2021F6H30H
At 30 June 2020: 20205 6A300 :

Cost X 7N 134,966 348,990 52,418 139,842 676,216

Accumulated depreciation REERAE

and impairment = (84,426) (20,500) (46,766) (151,692)

Net carrying amount IR FE 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524
At 1 July 2020, net of M202067A1H -

accumulated depreciation MK HER

and impairment B 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524
Additions nE 64,109 13,641 474 734 78,958
Transfers B (110,128) 79,372 1,761 28,995 -
Depreciation provided during — F I & # &

the year (42,465) (12,054) (18,394)  (72,913)
Exchange realignment M 53 E 12,604 1,354 7,006 25,021
At 30 June 2021, net of 7202166308 -

accumulated depreciation MBREFHER

and impairment BAE 327,716 23,453 111,417 555,590
At 30 June 2021: M20216F6 A30H

Cost BN 463,160 59,992 174,252 790,408

Accumulated depreciation REHTERAE

and impairment (135,444) (36,539) (62,835) (234,818)
Net carrying amount REFE 327,716 23,453 111,417 555,590
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX LEZEBEERLQF 125
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% - WRRRE(E)

126

(continued)

30 June 2020 20206 A30H
At 1 July 2019: R2019F7R1H :

Cost AR 51,882 155,674 12,866 101,216 321,638

Accumulated depreciation 2EHME - (25,504) (6,983) (26,452) (58,939)

Net carrying amount REFE 51,882 130,170 5,883 74,764 262,699
At 1 July 2019, net of R2019F7R18 -

accumulated depreciation Mk RiTir & 51,882 130,170 5,883 74,764 262,699
Additions NE 329,969 23,584 2,546 10,591 366,690
Transfers (=823 (243,747) 174,486 37,500 31,761 -
Disposal/write-off HE s (1,140) - - (32) (1,172)
Depreciation provided during 4 & #7 & & {5

the year - (31,363) (10,544) (15,404) (57,311)
Impairment during the year FENE - (28,838) (3,273) (5,929) (38,040)
Exchange realignment BE 5 3 2 (1,998) (3,475) (194) (2,675) (8,342)
At 30 June 2020, net of 202046 H30H -

accumulated depreciation HGREFTER

and impairment B 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524
At 30 June 2020: 202046 A30H :

Cost A 134,966 348,990 52,418 139,842 676,216

Accumulated depreciation 2HWERFEAE

and impairment - (84,426) (20,500) (46,766)  (151,692)

Net carrying amount REFE 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524

Emperor Culture Group Limited REN{EEXEEHRAHE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 “F &R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS RER I EE

Year ended 30 June 2021 #; £2021F6A30H It F &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets

The outbreak of Covid-19 since early 2020 and the
consequential unprecedented disruptions to the Group’s
business operations and developments as further detailed
in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, these
coupled with certain challenging external environment,
directly or indirectly, affecting the Group, especially
with regard to its cinema operation in Hong Kong,
have significantly affected the operating and financial
performances of various cinemas of the Group, as well
as their future outlook and development. The specific
effect of these events, changes in circumstances and
expected market development (collectively, the “Changes
in Circumstances”) on respective cinemas of the
Group became more apparent in the second half of
the financial year ended 30 June 2020, after certain
planning and forecasting process that underpinned
the year end impairment review of that year. Based
on relevant impairment testing of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of-use assets
("ROU Assets”) as at 30 June 2020, the Group
recognised impairment losses arising from the Changes
in Circumstances of HK$38,040,000 and HK$53,987,000,
respectively, in respect of certain PP&E and ROU Assets
which belong to the Group’s cinema operation operating
segment. The impairment loss for the year ended 30
June 2020 was determined based on the recoverable
amounts of the relevant CGUs to which those impaired
PP&E and ROU Assets related (the “Relevant CGUs”),
which were their values in use, totalling HK$659,274,000
as at 30 June 2020, as further detailed below.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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13. W% - WRRREB(E)

ME - BBERZEUREAEE
EZRE

H020F ) H B RS RBENEZERER
HAEE 2 EBEERERERKAOR
FIARBMTE (FUREEMBERRM T
21) EREABTEKEENINBIRR(E
B EE X EAER  FRHREDRS
B EESE EAMTERAERZE
Prey & & Rk s RIEE LA&«BZSZ%EX
AERER ZEEH - BRAELERTE
HmEER(GEMERAELDEE T
BZFEERARESEN 2 RE RERRE
Frig HAEBZSERMNAEETYENE
F£2020F6H30HIEBEENTEEFE
BRREE - IRIBEAREER2020F6H30H 2
M - SN ERE ((WE - BEERBE]D
UERERAEE(EREEE]) 2H#
AR ETBRAEBRE R EE
BEDE 2 BERER fﬁu&ﬁﬂﬂ
ﬁééﬁ?ﬁﬁm AEBEBREBBERELE
Ezmﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁu7,%38,040,000,%71&
53,987,000/%8 7T ° # £2020%F 6 430H I
FEZBREGSEDNENEZZEREY
¥ HMERBREUALRERAEEEEBRZ
HEARSESAEMN ZAA KB % ([HEE
REEEEMNMDET @ LT A E 2020
F6H30RA 2 fF AEEA $£659,274,0007%
T BEE—FFBEHINNT o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

(continued)
Impairment testing of the Relevant CGUs

For the Group’s cinema operation operating segment,
impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of each individual cinema, being the CGU to
which the respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate. The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets/forecasts covering
the remaining lease term (including any expected
renewal period, as appropriate) of the relevant leased
cinema property approved by management. Management
considers such projections for impairment testing
covering a period in excess of five years is justified
based on (i) the specific nature of the underlying
business (including the growth potential of each cinema)
and particular aspects of the film exhibition sector; and
(i) the industry knowledge and relevant experience of
management in preparing such projections based on what
management considers as reasonable and appropriate
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate
of the range of economic conditions and expected market
development that management expects would exist over
the relevant remaining lease term. For the current year, the
pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
for the respective CGUs are in the range of 11.5% to
13.5% (2020: 11.5% to 13.5%) reflecting specific risks
relating to the Relevant CGUs.

13. W% - WRRRE(E)

WX BBERRBURERAEE
EZREE)

HRAREEEENZRERNR

ﬁ$%IZﬁﬁ” BEEDEME R
BBRBAFESERBR 2T KROS5 -
BN E s WMERBEARFERES
EEBAZRcsELEBNEF ReELE
Bz BERFERERTEE
ET 8P HACEEEHERSHEEA
HEBRYE 2 FHH#EER(RETME
%%ﬁ%*mﬁﬁzwﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ%
BHzReREEH  -EBEREZS
AHEFN FRENR 2B AR
m’%¢gmmm%¥ﬁ2%%&gm
BEERERZEREE N REZ MR ITE
WERAE: R()EEBEEBERAASIE
BEZRE REZZEAIEMNTEM
BEERALCE MESBIEAREERE
WHBRNSHESRNETBFEEZEE
HHEERBEEMSER Z&EMGT °
RAEAFE  BREIBRLELENEANRRS
= TR 2 TR ATEE IR R F11.5% £13.5%
(20204F : 11.5% %= 13.5%) 28 * =M H
HERSEABNZEERR -
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14. LEASES 14. HE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various offices and
cinemas used in its operations. Leases of properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 15 years.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There
are several lease contracts that included extension
options and variable lease payments.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the ROU Assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

AEBEFEREBRA
AEEEAEAAREEENHDE
B BEAK  GEENEREN S
RN T2E154 20 - AEBBE L
BEAEDRRSBFAEENZ RS -
ETHEANSEAREZERTERE

B e

@ ERREEE
fERREEAEZREENRNAEFE
2B

At 1 July 2019 R2019F7H1H 636,626
Additions* = 649,215
Depreciation charge TERX (90,195)
Lease modifications MEEE] (64,838)
Impairment (note) VEREXC D) (53,987)
Exchange realignment bE 3 A& (12,494)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 7R2020%F 6 H30H K 2020F7H1H 1,064,327
Depreciation charge mERX (106,940)
Lease modifications HEEFT 27,648
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B 31,014
At 30 June 2021 R2021F6H30H 1,016,049
* Under HKFRS 16, right-of-use assets are recognised . BIEE AN GRS ELE165 - ©

at the commencement date of the lease. The
commencement date of the lease is defined as the date
on which a lessor makes an underlying asset available
for use by a lessee. Since the Group took possession
of, or was given control over, the use of the assets
after 1 July 2019, the relevant lease payments under
the term of the leases were recognised by the Group
as addition for that year.

As the relevant lease contractual documents were
entered into by the Group before the adoption of
HKFRS 16, the lease arrangements were treated as
operating leases when complying with the Listing Rules
at the date of such documents. The Company is not
required to re-comply with the Listing Rules in relation
to the notifiable transactions for such relevant leases
after the adoption of HKFRS 16.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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AR B B A ORI
AE16RAIDRI L EMEERHNX
e ZEXHRERARETED
RAR - ZEHELHRA /LS
HE - Bt RRARNERAE RN
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)
Note:

Further details regarding the impairment of the ROU
Assets are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

14. A& (&)

AEBEREBEAE
(@ ERAEEEE)
Wit -

FHAGEREEEZRENE - FHER
RERE M MERMFES -

b HEEE

T

Carrying amount at the beginning of R F ¥l 2 BRE &

the year 1,154,213 628,571
New leases g = 593,492
Accretion of interest recognised FEBRZEFTFE

during the year 55,973 47,455
Covid-19-related rent concessions RELEBEAZFERS

from lessors EIEEENESER (32,761) -
Payments L (42,448) (38,021)
Lease modifications HEEE 28,310 (64,838)
Exchange realignment bE X 58 & 32,920 (12,446)
Carrying amount at the end of the HRFERZEEE

year 1,196,207 1,154,213
Analysed into: DR

Current portion mBEE 94,777 50,457

Non-current portion ETMENE S 1,101,430 1,103,756

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2021

14. LEASES (continued)

H E202156A30H L FE

14. HE(#Z

The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERERBAGE
(€) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation c) EHEHERBERABRRZEEN
to leases are as follows: T

Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFER 55,973 47,455
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  FREEE 2T ERL

assets 106,940 90,195
Expense relating to short-term EHEHHEHE - ER"

leases” 524 106
Expense relating to leases of low- HBHKEELEEME

value assets* & > 198 29
Variable lease payments not RtAHEBEFEZ

included in the measurement of AR B R

lease liabilities” 600 178
Covid-19-related rent concessions RKELEBEAZHERS

from lessors ZIEMEBENESER (32,761) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZME = 53,987
Total amount recognised in profit or REHAHER Z L& 5

loss 131,474 191,950

* Included in “Selling, marketing and other cinema * FTATSHE - TIBHE & H Bt

operating expenses”.

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note (d)
29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 & £2021F6H30H |- F[E

a = =4+ S
15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 15. BAREBEFABZEZEHE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3
Investments in film productions BEYRIERE (a) 6,222
Investments in listed equity ETRAFHKE (b)
securities 908
7,130
Notes: B 77
(@  Investments in film productions (a) BEHEKRE
The Group’s investments in film productions as at 30 June N & B 720214 22020566 H30H 2 B %
2021 and 2020 are mandatorily classified as financial assets BUERERBIDBEREAABETAE
at FVPL as their contractual cash flows are not solely BZEREE  WMIBEREGNESTE
payments of principal and interest. FEINARERFE -
During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group H Z20214 K 202096 A30H IFF & » &N
had several investment agreements to invest in several SEEETHRERHE UKRERETE
film production projects, which entitled the Group having, FEYFIER - AP RBEREMNEEBRENK
among others, the rights to share the net profit or loss of the FoAEEEE(EHheE ZAAEEE
respective films attributable to the Group, as appropriate, H2EEEZHFaFNEE(WER) -
in accordance with the terms of the respective investment
agreements.
The Group measured, at initial recognition, the cost of these REBERVEBRAGREZEREZR
investments based on the cash consideration for these SREFEZEREZHAR -
investments.
All these film productions had been completed and FEZSEXEEHNE TN - MRHREH
the carrying amount at the end of the reporting period RAZEHBEAREBEEEZEEL 2MET
represented the fair value of the estimated net future cash KEBReREFENRAEME -
flows from these films attributable to the Group.
(b)  Investments in listed equity securities (by LEWRAFHIZE
The listed equity investments were classified as financial TR AEBEESEREAANBETAE
assets at FVPL as they were held for trading. During the mZERMEE  WHBEREARBERS -
year ended 30 June 2021, the listed equity investments H EZ2021F6A30B EFE - EmBRAER
were disposed of at HK$1,709,000 and a fair value gain of & LA1,709,0008 T E - BEAREERE
HK$801,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year. 801,000 B T AFE 2B NER -
Fi—
16. INVENTORIES 16. &
Inventories mainly represent food and beverage, FEFEREAHRLAEERREEZRm
consumables and other goods relating to the Group’s NEk - BBRREMEM -
cinema operation.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 & Z£2021F6H30H |- FfE
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

17. EZ RN

Trade receivables =Y e
Impairment VERIE]

9,727 2,913
(1,662) (381)

8,065 2,632

For the Group’s box office takings and sale of concession
goods and other products, payments on demand or in
advance in cash or by major credit/debit cards or other
electronic/mobile payment methods are normally required,
with the settlements from corresponding banks or other
financial institutions normally within 2 to 30 days. The
Group’s trading terms with its other customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally 1 month from the
date of billing. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts
due from members of the Emperor Group other than the
AY Entertainment Holdings Group (“Other Members of
the Emperor Group”) of HK$103,000 as at 30 June 2021
(2020: HK$550,000), which are unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and repayable on demand.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

RAKREERRA FifEmkEME
mZHE  —RUAREIUNEBERRS
MERRAEMEF BB 77K A
B el IR AT SO - ERERITHE M & B
B—REN2E0AANEE - AEEER
HiEPZBRGRREIBUAEET A
B -GEH-RREEZRE/IEA -
AR SR B AR B EORIB (B 2 FEUGK
THEEEEHEHNAHER - AKH
I & Bt H B 5 8 YGRS R ¥ B (A
mAEMEERIER - EHRKKS
PEE

R2021F6A30H  EW AL EEEK 8
(BERREEREERIN(HMES
£ B/ /&S ) FIE103,000/8 T (20204 :
550,000 ) sTAREB 2 B SR
HAEEER THERERERERE -

RBEHRR BHRRKRERARR
B EBEE KRR :

Within 1 month 1E AKX 2,502
1 to 3 months 1Z231E A -
Over 3 months 3E A LA &£ 30
2,632
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H 2202146 A30B IFFE
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2021

17. EZRWR(E)

BHRWRZBEBEREEESWT

At the beginning of the year REH 381
Impairment losses (note 7) WEEERZ7) -
Amount written off as uncollectible HisH AP E 2 FRIE -
Exchange realignment ME H, 58 B -
At the end of the year R E R 381

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a probability of default approach to measure
ECLs. The probability of default rates are estimated based
on comparable companies with published credit ratings.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and certain relevant information
that is reasonable and available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forward-looking credit risk information.

Loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables with
total gross amount of HK$1,662,000 (2020: Nil) was
recognised in the current year as the trade receivables
were in default and considered by management as credit
impaired. Other than that, the ECLs as at 30 June 2021
and 2020 were assessed by management to be minimal.
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H E202156A30H L FE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Year ended 30 June 2021

Prepayments ICENE
Deposits* Ba*
Other receivables H b & U 3K

18. AN - B R EMERRK

Less: Non-current portion

W IR E EB D

Current portion Uik ;e

34,386 33,985
46,715 39,511
844 1,600
81,945 75,096
(43,552) (36,338)
38,393 38,758

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had pledged time deposits
of HK$561,000 (2020: HK$579,000) for certain guarantees
issued by a bank.

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to deposits and other receivables for which there
was no recent history of significant default and there
were no material amounts in default. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status of the
debtors, and the ECLs as at 30 June 2021 and 2020
were assessed by management to be minimal.

Lease arrangements with Other Members
of the Emperor Group and related deposits
paid

During the current and prior years, the Group had lease
arrangements (the “Lease Arrangements”) with certain
Other Members of the Emperor Group in connection
with the leasing of office and cinema properties from
these companies. The total nominal amount of deposits
paid to these companies in connection with the Lease
Arrangements of HK$5,574,000 (2020: HK$5,574,000)
was included in non-current deposits at the end of the
reporting period. As at 30 June 2021, the ROU Assets,
the amortised cost of the deposits paid included in non-
current deposits and the lease liabilities in connection with
the Lease Arrangements amounted to HK$98,951,000,
HK$3,859,000 and HK$106,202,000 (2020:
HK$104,310,000, HK$3,662,000 and HK$107,916,000),
respectively.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

* MR2021F6A30H * AEBEE # — MR TT
B AT IREERE EF 561,000
7T (2020%F : 579,000/ JT) °

AL reREERIT BT ES
AENCHRRERENRENEERE
bW KRB RE - HATWEIIELETEKA
HEEMR TG - BB B E T 1472021
F K2020F6A30B v B EEIBE
ﬁj( °

BHMAEEEKE2HERH
URMEBEENESE

RAEERBAFE AEBESTHEM
REEBKERXSARAHEEZHAER
BhRyExeHEeETH((HERH) - 28
EXHABZENZERARZESREEA
5,574,000/ 7T (20204 : 5,574,000 7T)
ERBMEHRFAFERSIZE S - 12021
F6A30H B ELXHAB2ERESE
E AR REZEMNESOEHEK
AN E & E DR £98,951,000%8 7T »
3,859,000/ 7T }106,202,000/% 7T (2020
4 : 104,310,000 JT * 3,662,000/ T &
107,916,000 7T) °
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Year ended 30 June 2021 &, £202166A30H I F &
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERBEZEEY

Cash and bank balances

& K IRTTAEBR

40,625

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$24,977,000 (2020: HK$17,592,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Certain cash at banks earns interest at floating rates
based on applicable bank deposit rates. Short term
time deposits are made for varying periods of between
1 day and 3 months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

RMEIER  AEBAARE (AR
SHEMIR S MIR1TH 8 524,977,000/8 7T
(20204F : 17,592,000/ 7T) - A R ¥ T8
ERABAEHME - A BIEHEH
A ONE B IBIE O R4 TE - & & KA
EEEMATE) AEEEERBERES
THNEEBNETHAREL B AHM
B o

ETHRTIFRRRAEANRITERS
KEFBN R E - BEEHER
HRMIREMEAZH  BFANEEA
VIR & B RME - IR & (6% 3 E 5
T RF RBREAM B « SRITEHRTDFRR
WETHROLHEAEER FORT o
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Year ended 30 June 2021 & Z£2021F6H30H |- FfE

20. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

Trade payables B P REMNR
Accruals EstE A
Other payables H i F& - 3R

20. ES AN HibEARKE
FFEH

4,847
8,257
35,835

48,939

Notes:

(a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 3 months 3MEAR
Over 3 months 3 A E

it

(a) RBEHMKR BHEAFZEZAM K

ki NN

3,768
1,079

4,847

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 2-month terms.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of 2 months.

21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Short-term advances received WEE F & 8¢
from customers: FIE .
Cinema operation BB & 8

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received
for cinema operation. The increase in contract liabilities
as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 as compared to the end of
the prior financial period was mainly due to the increase
in short-term advances received from customers including
as a result of an increase in the number of cinemas at
the end of the respective reporting periods.

BHRNARTHER—RRMIEAR NS

=33
B °

(b) EMENKATHERFHHRRASME
Ao

. BHAEE

15,218 11,128

EHEBERREEREEMKE 2 QETE
NFE - BBFEFRERAL AOE
ER2021F N 2020F6 830 2 INE B
MRKEEFEHBAREEATE N (R
RS RE B RBT S8BT B0 -
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Year ended 30 June 2021

Current i
Bank borrowing repayable RITERPIFRK
within 1 year or on demand — EERER -
unsecured 4 35 47
Non-current FERE
Other loan — unsecured B E R - IR

The bank borrowing and the other loan are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

Notes:

(a) The bank borrowing bears interest at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate plus 2.2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had the Bank Loan Facility
amounting to HK$20,000,000 (2020: HK$20,000,000), of
which an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$7,000,000
(2020: HK$2,000,000) was utilised as at 30 June 2021.

The terms of the bank borrowing of the Group with a total
carrying amount of HK$7,008,000 as at 30 June 2021 (2020:
HK$2,000,000) contain a repayment on demand clause and,
accordingly, the bank borrowing has been classified as a
current liability. For the purpose of the above analysis, the
bank borrowing has been analysed as a bank borrowing
repayable within 1 year or on demand.

(b)  The other loan bears interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had the Other Loan Facility
amounting to HK$1,200,000,000 (2020: HK$1,200,000,000),
of which an aggregate loan principal amount of
HK$275,000,000 (2020: HK$144,000,000) was utilised as at
30 June 2021.

The other loan of the Group with a carrying amount of
HK$282,365,000 (2020: HK$146,313,000) (including
accreted interest) as at 30 June 2021 has been classified as
a non-current liability as the lender, who is a family member
of a director of the Company and Dr. Albert Yeung, has
agreed not to demand repayment of the other loan together
with all accrued interest and all outstanding amounts until 20
January 2024 (2020: 20 January 2022).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX/CEEEBEERAT

138 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 “F &}

22. FFERTRHEMEE

7,008 2,000
282,365 146,313
289,373 148,313

RITERREMERRBTFE -

o

(a)

RITEEREBRITAEREMFL2.2%
AT e

MR202146A30H A& BE#HBERTE
= Fh & % [£20,000,00058 TT (20204 :
20,000,000 JT)* H A B H A & £ 58
7,000,0005% 7T (20204 : 2,000,000/ 7T)
202146 A30EE# A -

MR2021F6A30H A& BB EME A
7,008,0003% 7T (20204 : 2,000,000 7T)
ZIRTERBE SR ERE IR At
RITEREE Y BARDAGE - B LS
fims - RITERDE S ITARIFERK
EESREENRITER -

HiBEREBBRITEERENFE2%

e

R2021F6A30H  AEBH A HME K
Bt & %8 £1,200,000,0005 7T (20204 :
1,200,000,000/ L) * EFR ER AL 25
275,000,000/ 7T (20204 : 144,000,000
BIT)R2021F 6 A30BHE &M °

MR2021F6A30H A £ B iE @ & A
282,365,000 7T (20204 : 146,313,000
BIL)(REZFAF B ZHMERBEE D
MAIIERDEAEGE WIHAREF(BAEAR
Rl REERGELIZ—ZRENKE)R
E B F20249F1A20H (20204 : 202241
ReoB)RIAEkEEHEMERERME
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23. PROVISIONS 23. B1&

At 1 July 2019 R2019F7H1H -
Additional provision BN 44,816
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 2020 6 H30H K& 2020F7A1H

Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 B

At 30 June 2021 1K 20216 H30H

Pursuant to the terms of relevant tenancy agreements, the
Group, as the lessee of certain leases of properties, has
the obligations to reinstate its relevant leased properties
to their original state or to a condition as specified in the
respective tenancy agreements at the cost of the Group at
the end/upon the termination of the relevant lease terms.

The provisions for reinstatement costs are determined
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by
management with reference to past experience and
currently available information. The assumptions and
estimates are reviewed and revised, where appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

REBBEERRGS  AKEERET
MEREzABAREHRBEERER
Ribl - AETEEMBEEHANEER
MEXELEAHREWMZARE RN &
PSR B PE -

EERABREDREEEESZBER
BLEEMABERMEL 2B TRE &G
AAMETE - ZEBEALGEAEIREME
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24. DEFERRED TAX

24. JE fE B IR

140

during the year are as follows:

The movements in deferred tax liabilittes and assets BEEMREEEREERAFEZEHM
T
EZEBEEE

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 July 2019

Deferred tax debited/
(credited) to profit or loss
during the year (note 11)

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
30 June 2020 and
1 July 2020

Deferred tax credited to profit
or loss during the year
(note 11)

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 30 June 2021

#2019 7H1H - 84,713 84,713
FEREBZMNE,(GTA)
ZIEERS B (A aE11)
320 (2,631) (2,311)
P& 5 38 & - (3,090) (3,090)
20206 830H &
2020 7A1H ZiE &
MIBAERE 78,992 79,312
FERBRIATAZEL
MIE (A aE11)
(4,365) (4,698)
PE N 7,489 7,502
7202165308 2
BEETHIBERERRE 82,116 82,116
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24. EERIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEHEBEEE

At 1 July 2019 20194 7H1H - 83,710 83,710
Deferred tax credited/ FEREZNE,GA)

(debited) to profit or loss ZIEER B (M A1)

during the year (note 11) 320 (1,655) (1,335)
Exchange realignment b 5 & - (3,063) (3,063)
Gross deferred tax assets at 720206 H30H &

30 June 2020 and 2020F7A1R ZEE

1 July 2020 HMIBEEBE 78,992 79,312
Deferred tax debited to profit FEREF I 2 E T

or loss during the year MIE (K 5 11)

(note 11) (4,365) (4,698)
Exchange realignment b X 5 & 7,489 7,502
Gross deferred tax assets at 742021 6H30H 2

30 June 2021 BRI IR & E AR 82,116 82,116

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets HEEMMS ETECEHBEEENERE
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated EHEGEMBERARPETRIE - AT
statement of financial position. The following is an analysis AU HREmMs  AEBELERIEL
of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial R DT

reporting purposes:

Gross deferred tax assets FRIETRTEEELT 82,116 79,312
Gross deferred tax liabilities RERIEEERTE (82,116) (79,312)

Net deferred tax liabilities R RARPERZ
recognised in the consolidated BEEHRIBEREBEFRE
statement of financial position
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EEBIE(EZ)
Deferred tax assets (continued) ELERBEEGE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBERR  AEENRABRNEBEEER
unrecognised tax losses of HK$647,649,000 (2020: 647,649,0007% T (20204 : 469, 947000/%
HK$469,947,000), subject to the agreement by the TL) AR E R EARRT - ZF
relevant tax authorities, that are available for offsetting MEEEANARBHEEEAZENIEES
against future taxable profits of the companies in which ZRBIZARERT AN - ERE2BEAHL
the losses arose, of which an aggregate amount of 442 512,000/ 7T (20204 : 316,051,000/
HK$442,512,000 (2020: HK$316,051,000) is available TOERERBR AT AERNEEEBR
indefinitely and the remaining unrecognised tax losses AREHERRKERT G - BRA1FEET
will expire in around 1 year to 7 years for offsetting FlEm ARZEEETEELRHSEE
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have BNER IHAZFEBTIAEAINR
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they REREREF R BEERBEATTAIAE
have mainly arisen in entities that have been loss-making BRISARBEE BRI EN - Bt
or due to the unpredictable future taxable profit streams ARZEEERREENIBEE -
of these entities, and in the opinion of the directors, it is
currently not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
25. ISSUED CAPITAL 25. B RITIRA
Shares iz
Authorised: EE
50,000,000,000 (2020: 50,000,000,000 (20204 :
50,000,000,000) ordinary 50,000,000,000) %
shares of HK$0.01 each FREECOVEIL 2T AR 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBHEHR:
3,213,340,890 (2020: 3,213,340,890 (20204 :
3,213,340,890) ordinary 3,213,340,890) &
shares of HK$0.01 each FREECOVEIL 2 E AR 32,133
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Year ended 30 June 2021

H 22021F6A30H ILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 8 November 2011. The major terms of the
Scheme are summarised as follows:

1.

Purpose of the Scheme: To enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
shares in the Company as incentive or rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees,
including any directors of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds an equity interest.

(a) Total number of shares available for issue as at
28 September 2021 (i.e., the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements)
under the Scheme: 321,334,089 shares

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it
represents as at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements: 10%

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Scheme:

(a) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(b) options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the
Company or their respective associates in any
1 year exceeding the higher of 0.10% of the
shares in issue and with a value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option: At any time from the date of
acceptance of the option to such a date determined
by the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) but in any event not exceeding 10 years
from the date of grant.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

26. BRESHE

iR e

AT R2011F 11 ASH R 4y —
sraEl((Zzstall) -
s

TR [ P
ZAtE 2 T2 BT

1. ZETEZBEN:BARBRAER
SEERTEREARBARARARK
o ERHEBAREEMIERR 2 %

2. BN AERKZ2HEREREBE(RE
RABEMES) ERBARISHA
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Share options (continued)

6.

9.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised: No minimum period
unless otherwise determined by the Board.

(a) Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(b)  The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date
of grant; and

(c) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board
(subject to adjustment) and will not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for trades in one or more board lots of shares
on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The Scheme will expire on 7 November 2021.

During the year, no option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme (2020:

Nil).
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27. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

71.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose on the cancellation
of repurchased shares and accordingly reduction of
nominal value of share capital of the Company.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the
capital reduction and share premium reduction as
a result of a capital reorganisation of the Company
on 8 May 2014.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available for
distribution under certain circumstances. However,
the Company cannot make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve mainly comprises
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.
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28. BEEXRFEREZZ2HEE

28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

Percentage of equity interest held by
non-controlling interests:
Sino Spirit Group*

FERERTIGRE

B B 2 A

SERER

BOL:
Sino Spirit & &~

Loss for the year allocated to non-

THREFREZERERZ

AEBBEAEANFERED KB RF

45%

controlling interests: FEBE:

Sino Spirit Group* Sino Spirit& E* (8,303) (11,045)
Accumulated balance of non- FEREZRREAD

controlling interests at the WRTHEER:

reporting date:

Sino Spirit Group* Sino Spirit& E* (43,841) (36,126)

* Representing Sino Spirit and its subsidiaries

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of Sino Spirit Group. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

* $5 Sino Spirit &z E i & A &)

HIHAT 2 28 -

TR%’RSino SpirtE@ 2 B HEES -
BB AASESECZHEEER

Revenue WA 25,683 18,184
Total expenses, net B F (44,135) (42,729)
Loss for the year FEEE (18,452) (24,545)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREIHEHEBERSE (17,145) (25,900)
Current assets mEEE 7,329 4,550
Non-current assets FEREEE 110,666 114,752
Current liabilities mEBE (121,751) (107,029)
Non-current liabilities ERBAER (93,669) (92,553)
Net cash flows from operating KEKEEHZ

activities RengF8 5,524 4,779
Net cash flows used in investing A& EE 2

activities REMEFHE (220) (239)
Net cash flows used in financing RAREEEE 2

activities REMEFHE (3,274) (4,748)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESESEMEM,

cash equivalents OB ) 588 2,030 (208)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 “F &R
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the
Group had non-cash additions to ROU Assets
and lease liabilities of HK$604,399,000 and
HK$593,492,000 respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for leased properties.

During the vyear ended 30 June 2020,
provision for reinstatement costs in respect
of certain leased properties of the Group
amounting to HK$44,816,000 were recognised
with corresponding additions to ROU Assets
of the Group for that year.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the
Group had non-cash lease modifications
to ROU Assets and lease liabilities of
HK$27,648,000 (2020: HK$64,838,000) and
HK$28,310,000 (2020: HK$64,838,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for certain leased properties.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

30 June 2021 2021466 H30H
At 1 July 2020 M2020F7H18
Changes from financing BERESRE 2

cash flows #H)
Covid-19-related rent KEHBAZHT
concessions from WERIBHEEN
lessors e ER
Interest expense M ERX
Lease modifications HEEFT
Exchange realignment [ ¥ 7§ %
At 30 June 2021 R2021F6H30H

Emperor Culture Group Limited

148,313

135,932

289,373

29. FERERERWEE

@ FEXBRERS
()  #ZE2020F6A30HILFE &
SENERAYMEZEERHR
BEERREERMAERBZIE
e RNE D FIA604,399,000/%
7t }2593,492,0007& 7T °

(i) # =2020F6H30B LFE -
RAEESETHEME 2EH
& 18 AR AN 8 1#44,816,0007% 7T
ERRAZFEAER(FE AR
BEZHEERE -

(i) # ZE2021F6A308LFE &
SEBRETHARDEZBERY
BEFRESEREEAGBZIE
BeMEBFTD R A27,648,000
7 7 (20204 : 64,838,000 7T)
%.28,310,0007%  JT (20204 :
64,838,00078 7T) °

(b) MEETHELECEBEZEH

1,154,213 3,709

(42,448) (3,709)

(32,761)
55,973
28,310
32,920

1,196,207

REXLEXEEMARATF
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

29 ZEREREBRME(E)

b) RMETHEEZ2EBEZET
(&)

30 June 2020 2020946 A30H
At 1 July 2019 20194 7H1H - 628,571 1,689 43,589
Changes from financing BERESHE 2

cash flows % B 145982  (38,021) 2,020 -
New leases FTHEE - 593,492 - -
Lease modifications MEEE] - (64,838) - -
Interest expense FEHX 2,331 47,455 - -
Exchange realignment  [& 3§ % - (12,446) - -
At 30 June 2020 202046 A30H 148,313 1,154,213 3,709 43,589

(c) Total cash outflow for leases c) HEZHSRLATHE

ARSI RERZEEZR S
MO AEEEHIMT

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

REEBHN
BMEEBHN

Within operating activities

Within financing activities 38,021

38,334

30. EXEIE
RBEMK - ARBAEUTEARALRE

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

ST &EETH
BB
M R TR G

Contracted, but not provided for:

Property, plant and equipment 39,884

Emperor Culture Group Limited REN{EEXEEHRAHE
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31. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES  31.
AND OTHER MEMBERS OF THE EMPEROR
GROUP
(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and

balances detailed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties and Other Members
of the Emperor Group during the year:
Other members of the AY H {th 5 3 B IR 8442 ik
Entertainment Holdings EEKE
Group
Sales of goods & 7
Film rental expenses EYHERX
Other related parties* Eﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁki*
Company secretarial fee NEMES
Interest expense on other /H\ﬁﬂﬁih MERX
borrowing
Other Members of the HthXEXBRE
Emperor Group
Consultancy fee i o B
Purchases of furniture g B XM
Interest expense on lease HEBGEMEMX
liabilities
Lease payments not included FitATHEBEFEZ
in the measurement of ME R
lease liabilities
Financial advisory fee B EERB
Reimbursement of BRITBRAX
administrative expenses
Sales of goods HE B &

HEEAIRBEMEESEE/K
ENRS
(Q) BREFAMBKBRREME O F M
MRS THREHRIN AEER
FALEHBEATRNAESEEEAM
KEHEITUTRS:
(i) 159
(ii) 194
(vi) 200
(vii) 2,313
(iii) 606
(iif) 4,673
(iv) 5,433
(iv) -
(ii) 465
(v) 10,491
(i) 664

*

The other related parties include (1)

an entity

beneficially owned by a director of the Company; and
(2) a family member of Dr. Albert Yeung and a director

of the Company.

The underlying transactions as set out in notes (iii)
and (iv) above also constitute disclosed continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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31. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 31. BHEEE AT R HEM X EE B K
AND OTHER MEMBERS OF THE EMPEROR ENRZ(E)
GROUP (continued)

(Q) (continued) () &)

Notes: B it

(i) The sales of goods were based on terms as agreed (i) HEMROEREBAIRE 2K
by the relevant parties. ;oo

(i) ~ The amounts charged were based on terms as (i)  FTWEz & T E R &k P
agreed by the relevant parties as set out in respective A THE 2B -
agreements.

(i)  The purchases of furniture and consultancy fee were (i) BEERLEKDBRBIENEBAL
based on terms as agreed by the relevant parties. W E 2 AR e

(iv)  The amount was based on terms as agreed by the (iv), ZEeBDHERSHERZTS B
relevant parties as set out in respective tenancy AT HEZIHRRK -
agreements.

(v)  The amounts charged were with reference to the costs v) FTEBZzeBIEL2EMELENY
incurred. PR o

(vi)  The company secretarial fee charged by the related (Vi) B—BARAEBHKEEGZEHEE
company, which is ultimately controlled by a director of NEWE 2 AR E B T E R IEE
the Company, was based on terms as agreed by the AT HE 2K -

relevant parties.

(vii)  Being interest on the other loan from a family member (i) REREARFA—BESZFEBELTZ
of a director of the Company and Dr. Albert Yeung. —BREXENHBER TR -
Details of the terms thereof are disclosed in note 22 BHEBRFIFBERERN GV BRE
to the consolidated financial statements. MfzE22 ©
(b) The amounts due to related companies, representing (b) EfEEQRRE  EMNBZK
an amount due to another member of the AY IREIEREE —ZH MK B 2 5B
Entertainment Holdings Group of HK$1,074,000 /1,074,000 7T (20204 : 786,000
(2020: HK$786,000) and amounts due to Other BTIMENEMREEEEKE 2
Members of the Emperor Group of HK$9,048,000 X IE 59,048,000/ T (20204 :
(2020: HK$2,923,000), are unsecured, interest-free 2,923,000 ) AEER £ B
and repayable on demand. RBRBERER -
(C) The amount due to non-controlling interests is (C) FEfFEERESAEARER ®
unsecured, interest-free and repayable after 1 year BREBABREPREIFRERE -

from the end of the reporting period.

(d) Compensation of key management d) *EEFZTEZEEABE ZHRMH
personnel of the Group

Fees 1,660
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included EFEHFN s E—PFBIHNEEH
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. EMARMIEEO
150 Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEZEBEERLQT
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. ¥ RlElo2€m I A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of ZEHEINERMIARBREHARCEEREN

financial instruments at the end of the reporting period N
are as follows:

Financial assets EWMEE

30 June 2021 2021 6A30H
Investments in film productions ERRERE
Trade receivables B 5 e WK
Financial assets included in FFAENR - &S
prepayments, deposits and K B Ath & WK 2
other receivables EREE 47,559
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 56,858
112,482
* Mandatorily designated as such . 58 1 20 1t 15
Financial liabilities EEAE

30 June 2021 202156 H30H

Trade payables =) ANE S

Financial liabilities included in other payables AAEMENREESER
and accruals ZEeBARE

Amounts due to related companies FE &R R HIA

Amount due to non-controlling interests JE 1<F FE 125 AR #E 2 5K 1B

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FERITRHEMEE

Lease liabilities HEAE

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEXEEHFRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 Ff

5,489
8,065

47,559
56,858

117,971

15,438

51,598
10,122
43,589
289,373
1,196,207

1,606,327
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. #ERl&lozE€m I AE(#Z)
(continued)

Financial assets ERMEE

30 June 2020 202046 A30H
Investments in film productions B RERE 6,222 - 6,222
Investments in listed equity EFTRAFHKE
securities 908 - 908
Trade receivables B 5 R - 2,532 2,532
Financial assets included in FFATRNR - &S
prepayments, deposits and N H A R R 2
other receivables TREE - 41,111 41111
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY - 40,625 40,625
7130 84,268 91,398
. Mandatorily designated as such * S8 i 20 it 38 E
Financial liabilities cEAs

30 June 2020 202046 H30H
Trade payables B SRR 4,847
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAHEMENRKRETER
and accruals ZEmAE 43,461
Amounts due to related companies FE R E A E 5B 3,709
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE -F FE %2 AR #E 21 5K 1B 43,589
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFEBRITREMEER 148,313
Lease liabilities HE&E 1,154,213
1,398,132
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 33. 2T EHZ2AABENRAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

Investments in film productions & ¥ & {ERE
Investments in listed equity EHRAE S
securities ®E

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, the current
portion of financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related companies and non-controlling
interests, and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
reasonably approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities/repayable on demand
of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not
material. The fair values of the non-current portion of
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, amount due to non-controlling interests,
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings had
been calculated and assessed mainly by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities, as appropriate. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at
30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 were assessed to be
insignificant.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
the fair value measurement of financial instruments
and analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
management.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 33. 2T HZ2AABENRAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included in the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

For investments in film productions which were released
for theatrical release in its primary markets, their fair
values as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 were estimated with
reference to the remaining net proceeds receivable from
the exploitation of the films.

The fair values of listed equity investments as at 30 June
2020 were based on quoted market prices.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 30 June 2021 and
2020:

BEERE

TMEERABZARNBERIARNE
BT 2EZRARRZSCREIEFR D
ERINTARBZEEAR - ERIAT
FEMBRFAEAEE:

REREZTEMGER MR B ®1E
KEMS » HR2021F K 2020%F6 H30H
ZARNBEDNSEEYHEMSIER
TR R IB FREEITMAA o

R20204F6 A30H » ERAKEZ AR
BEDERMERE

AT /20214 20206 H30A £/t T A
HEMAERTAEEGABBEERE
TEBEREDITZHE

Investments Income approach,  Discount rate 6.50% (2020: 6.50%) 5% (2020: 5%) increase/
in film discounted cash ~ BFIR & 6.50% (20204 : 6.50%) decrease in discount
productions flow method rate would result in

BEYRERE WAFE - BhE decreasefincrease in

Rengx fair value by HK$11,000
(2020: HK$10,000)
5% (2020%F : 5%)

Bﬂiiﬁﬂ*ﬂu/})ﬁd\
BERDRBERD
b le]ﬁ,OOO/%E(ZOZO
% 110,000 7T)
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 33. ¢RI E>AABERAA
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEZERE)

i

Fair value hierarchy PREEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRITAEEERIAAABEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: ZER

Assets measured at fair value: RAREBEFTEZEE:

30 June 2021 20216 H30H
Financial assets at HBALBEIGIALE
FVPL: BEHBEE:
Investments in film EXRERE
productions
30 June 2020 202046 A30H
Financial assets at B EGAE
FVPL: I EHEE
Investments in film B EIERE
productions - - 6,222 6,222
Investments in listed EHRARES
equity securities "E&E 908 - - 908

908 - 6,222 7,130

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEXEEHFRAE
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 33. @R TAZAABERAAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level
3 during the year are as follows:

EBEE®RE

AREEERE)
RAREENBRZEE ()
AFEERARBEHERDHNT

Financial assets at FVPL: BRARBEFABERZZ
eWMEE:
At the beginning of the year R E A 164,969
Total gains/(losses) recognised in RIEZAER W E
profit or loss (E518) s 392
Settlements #we (159,139)
At the end of the year R E R 6,222

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, lease
liabilities, amounts due to related companies, amount
due to non-controlling interests and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as investments in film productions, investments in
listed equity securities, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, which mainly arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX/CEEEBEERAT
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely
and regularly the movements in interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax
(through the impact on floating rate interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings).

4. Y HEBREERERBE(E)

A = 2 b
AEEEEGEEEAKEIR TN EG
BB RITEEMIEERR 2M 5 H
XEHER - AEEFZEEHNTIR
EMEEHFHEZRR -

TRETEMEEBEERFITEZIF
AT NEERRABRCEBY TSR
TREMBEZZE)BMEAEHR 2
CENEIPA: Y

30 June 2021 2021%6H30H
HK$ borrowings BT R 1,447
(1,447)
30 June 2020 2020 6 A30H
HK$ borrowings & TTE K 50 742
(50) (742)

Credit risk

The Group trades on credit mainly with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

FERR
AEBEIERARREBRIZESS
EATEERS - It ERIRRBESE

BXEEE-
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
is mainly based on past due

credit policy,

which

information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 30 June. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets.

158

M. YHEAREERRERBE(E)

FERRE

B K LB I 4F R PR R
TERIERAEEEHBE 2 EEE
ERBEEERR EEUBBANA
ERE(BFRBRBBERARSNMA
13 E At B R R K6 A30 B 4F R AT AR I
A RIS EASREEZERE
-

30 June 2021 2021%56H30H
Trade receivables* B o EW R
Financial assets included FAERS RekH
in prepayments, deposits fERR eREE
and other receivables
- Normal** - & 47,559 47,559
Cash and cash equivalents HE&RkEEZEY
~ Not yet past due - HAEH 56,858 56,858
104,417 114,144
30 June 2020 2020%F6A30H
Trade receivables* B 5 E R - - - 2,913 2,913
Financial assets included FAENR - BE R E
in prepayments, deposits kR eBEE
and other receivables
- Normal** - ERE 41,111 - - - 41,111
Cash and cash equivalents R&NBEESEY
- Not yet past due — MK #8 HR 40,625 - - - 40,625
81,736 - - 2,913 84,649

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified

approach for impairment, further detailed information is
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

*%

The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

. AEEREZREREREZREDE
E-—THBREEMBRRMEI7TRE -

o AT REREMERGZERE
EZEREEEERBHRBKRERIESR]
AREENBTEREERA VAR IAR
EERBRERZN -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. UBERBREEEERBKEKE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk RBESRAR
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate funds to FEEEERFBARCZESAMEBEA
meet commitments associated with its financial liabilities. TRIBEEHM o AE BEHEZERAS
Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by EemafRemEE 23 HBELLE
management on an on-going basis, considering the EEBZHEAREGRE REBELEE
maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities and financial EEYERAEEBRERE °

assets, and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at AEBERBEHRceRBEERE
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ARBBBRRZEBABREAT -

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

30 June 2021 2021456 H30H
Trade payables B PR R 15,438
Financial liabilities included in & A H ftb &1 5% &%
other payables and accruals EErERZ 2/
=R 51,598
Amounts due to related FE < A 38 A R IR
companies 10,122
Amount due to non-controlling  J& < 3E 4% A% # 25
interests IR 43,589 43,589
Interest-bearing bank and other B R 1T & H A
borrowings BE 7,008 297,784 304,792
Lease liabilities HEEB®E 147,313 593,776 762,326 1,503,415
231,479 935,149 762,326 1,928,954
30 June 2020 202096 A30H
Trade payables B SRR 4,847 - - 4,847
Financial liabilities included in & A H fth FE 1 5% &%
other payables and accruals ErtER &/
BfE 43,461 - - 43,461
Amounts due to related FET & R R IR
companies 3,709 - - 3,709
Amount due to non-controlling  J& 1 I 28 IS # 25
interests B - 43,589 - 43,589
Interest-bearing bank and other T B R 1T & H A
borrowings BE 2,000 154,226 - 156,226
Lease liabilities HEARE 103,524 549,574 881,185 1,534,283

157,541 747,389 881,185 1,786,115

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEXEEHFRAE
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. EEREERERBERGE)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 30 June 2021, the above interest-bearing bank
borrowing with a carrying amount of HK$7,008,000
(2020: HK$2,000,000) contains a repayment on demand
clause giving the relevant bank the unconditional right to
call in the borrowing at any time and, therefore, for the
purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount
was classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors of the
Company do not believe that the borrowing will be called
in its entirety at any time before its maturity and they
consider that the borrowing will be repaid in accordance
with the maturity date as set out in the banking facility
letter and bank correspondences. This evaluation was
made after considering: the consolidated financial
position of the Group at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements; the lack of events
of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the bank borrowing which
contain a repayment on demand clause, the maturity
profile of the bank borrowing as at 30 June 2021, based
on the contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring
the effect of any repayment on demand clause, is as
follows:

At 30 June 2021

2021566 H30H

REBESREKE)
#20219F6830H + B M {& 47,008,000
7 7T (20204 : 2,000,000/8 JT) 2 kit 5t
BiRITERSHRERKEBEER BT
MR SR 1T AR 2 B M) R A B R 3R
B Atk LA EBRME @ £
HMEBEBMREX]-

BEALAGRRE  ARABAEFTALTR
73 7% % 48 RS TR B B A A 0] B e 2SR
2HREER UYRBR/EFERERTHE
R ERITHEMEMNEHAEER - 2
REHETSZ BB TN @5 74 #17 - Ak
BREEMBERRMEBMNGES B
AR AFEROEMF  URAKEDR
B 1B & FT A R AT O AT E1IE 3R -

RIEE S EBERERIERORITETIE
R ZERITEZN2021FE6 A30H /) 2
MR R(ERELRBIBRBE LT
E BRI MIZERETIEROZE)H 50
—|T:

At 30 June 2020 7202046 HA30H - 2,000 2,000
160 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX/CEEEBEERAT
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT KRR EEEERBEK(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management EXRERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEENFEZEAERBEREERE2AE
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to EFELENE ﬁ&i’ﬁﬂkﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁtt
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy X DAXRHHEBLEBETHZAERRE
capital ratios in order to support its business and B -

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEBEBHEERNEBITRBELHMRN
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic SHYREAEENRBR SR MAFE -
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying RTHEFIABRERNERE  AEEAH
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the BrRREMNHKRESE  RMRERE
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, BARLEITHIR o Bl E£2021F & 20204F
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 6H30RILEFE EAEEER EX
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or Bruwmegs o

processes for managing capital during the years ended
30 June 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, $EIM§EE\T§%7(EUM?@ BEE (B
which is calculated by dividing the total borrowings JE AN SE 28 AR A 2 FRIE S G T RER 1T R L 8
(including amount due to non-controlling interests and f)[ﬁzfuﬁ@ﬁﬁ)%%ﬁ\ﬁﬁ 202146
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) by total H30B  "EBZEEEBELER19.3%
assets. As at 30 June 2021, the Group’'s gearing ratio (20204 : 11.2%) °

was 19.3% (2020: 11.2%).

([ Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBEERL T
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. A2 7] Bf # ik i &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BERARBARBEMRZHBARAREZ

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ERBIIMT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEBRARZKE 291,720
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FERR e kEft
receivables JiE W 3K 284

Financial assets at FVPL BHARBEFFAESR

ZEeRMEE 908
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFACEEY 1,657
Total current assets RBEEHAE 2,849
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade and other payables B IR R EH A E

E:S 828
Amount due to a related company FEf B E R R RIE 68
Total current liabilities REBEERAE 896
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,953
Net assets EEFE 293,673
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 32,133
Reserves (note) & (Ha) 261,540
Total equity AR 293,673

162 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERAF
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. XA R BBk &k (&Z)

THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: B 7F -

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KAEfFEEsMENT

At 1 July 2019 R201947A1H 912,843 50 58,658 (380,166) 591,385
Loss for the year and FEBERFE
total comprehensive T HEEBE
loss for the year - - - (329,845) (329,845)
At 30 June 2020 and M2020%6A30H
1 July 2020 N 2020F7HA1H 912,843 (710,011) 261,540
Loss for the year and FEEBEBRERFE
total comprehensive 2HBEESE
loss for the year = (196,807) (196,807)
At 30 June 2021 7202196 H30H 912,843 58,658 (906,818) 64,733
36. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 36. REMBHRERAOIAE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved A HRRER2021F9A28HKES
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 SHE R RN E -

September 2021.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX LEZEBEERLQF 163
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Five-year Financial Summary

EEMBHBE

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities THREMAEEBERETBFE 2 %45 - &
of the Group for the last five financial years as extracted from ENKAE @ IHEFECTH B2 LB ZEE T
the published audited consolidated financial statements: Wk

REVENUE A EPClER 126,245 145,753 91,202 44,925
LOSS BEFORE TAX MRBATE B Prriarg)| (354,202) (134,285) (158,355)  (69,253)
Income tax credit Fris i & = 976 - 242 175
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEE Prriar))| (353,226) (134,285) (158,113)  (69,078)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: LTFALTEEEIS:
Owners of the parent NEIHEA A CREIAA))  (342181)  (126,437)  (153,797)  (62,327)
Non-controlling interests FEE R (GIelE) (11,045) (7,848) (4,316) (6,751)

PPENrE)) (353,226) (134,285)  (158,113)  (69,078)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEHE

Total assets s E Jrekinlyl 1,716,344 700,273 902,608 1,053,942
Total liabilities waE o)) (1,458,797)  (101,144)  (161,468)  (173,048)
Net assets EEFHE SRIOPE 257,547 599,129 741140 880,894
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: U TATFE(RRER:
Owners of the parent NElEA A 96,866 293,673 623,518 752,706 904,179
Non-controlling interests FEE R R CRICER) (36,126) (24,389)  (11,566)  (23,285)

53,025 257,547 599,129 741140 880,894
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